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Transiation of a report originally isswed in Spanish based on our wark performed in accordance with menerally
accepled auditing standards in Spain and of financial statements originally isswed in Spanish and prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in Spain (see Note 40). In the evewt af a discrepancy,

the Spanish-language version prevails.
AUDITORS® REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
To the Sharcholders of

Banco de Cridito Local de Espadin, 5.A.:

I, We have sudited the financial statements of Banco de Crédito Local de Bspafia, 5.A. (the Bank) comprising
the balance sheet at 31 December 2006, and the relited income statement, cash flow statement, statement of
changes in equity and notes to the financial statements for the year then ended. The preparation of these
{inancial statements is the responsibility of the Bank's directors. Our responsibility is to EXpress an opinion
an the financial statements taken as a whole based on our audit work performed in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards, which require examination, by means of sclective tests, of the evidence
supporting the financial statements and evaluation of their presentation, of the accounting policies applied and
of the estimales macde.

2. As required by Spanish corporate and eommmercial law, for comparison purpases the Bank's directors prosen,
in addition to the figures for 2006 for each item in the balance sheet, income statement, cash flow stalement,
statermnent of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, the figures for 2005, Our opinion refers
only to the financial statements for 2006, On 30 March 2006, we issued our auditors’ report on the Bank's
2003 financial stalements, in which we expressed an unqualificd opinion.

3. The Bank's operations are performed under the management of the Banco Bilbao Vizeaya Argentaria Group,
giving rise 1o the balances and transactions with related companies that are indicated in the notes to the
financial statements, The accompanying financial statements, which are presented in complinnce with current
regutations, should be interprated in this context.

4. In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements for 2006 present fairly, in all material respects, the
equity and financial position of the Bank at 31 December 2006, and the results of its operations, the changes
in its equity and its cash flows for the year then ended, and contain the required information, sufficient for
their proper interpretation and comprehension, in conformity with the accounting principles and standards
contained in Bank of Spain Circular 472004, which were applied on a basis consistent with that of the
preceding year.

3. The sccompanying directors’ report for 2006 contains the explanstions which the directors consider
appropriste shout the Bank's situation, the evolution of its business and other matters, but is net an integral
part of the financial statements. We have checked that the accounting information in the directors® report is
consistent with that contained in the financial statements for 2006, Our work as auditors was confined 1o
checking the directors’ report with the aforementioned scope, and did not include a review of any information
other than that drawn from the Bank's accounting records,
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Translmiion of fingacial stafements afginally issued in Spanish and prepared in sccordance with [FRSs, as adopted by the Epmpasn
provads

Lo (Woles 1.2 and 40} I lhe avanl of a decrapanay, tho Spenish-fanguage warsion

BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.
BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005 {Motas 1 to 5)

- Thousands of Euros -

CASH AND BALAMCES WITH CENTRAL BAMKS [Mata 8) 223373 334 82
[FINANCIAL ABSETS HELD FOR TRADING (Mote T) 30,243 27567
Loans and advancas to credit instiulions .
Maney market operalions through counterparties s =
Loans and advances o cusiomens a
Del instrumanis :
Cither aquity airumenis B
Trading derivatives 30,242 27,57
Momorandum iterm; Loaned or advanced as collateral -
(OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS -
Loans and advancas to credil instilulions -
Money markel operations through counterparties =
Loans and advances to cusiomers - o
Debt instruments [
Clher equity Instruments
Memorandum ilem: Loaned or advanced as collateral .
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Note B) 2619323] 284715
Debl instruments 2619,323 2847 15
Hher equily instrements -
Memorandum itern: Loaned or advanced as collateral 18,343 =2
LOANS AND RECEIVABLES (Note &) 8465091 8,77852
Loans and advances lo cradit institufions 41,202 129 84
Maney market operations through counterparties - A
Loans and advances io cuslomers 8423 357 B, 548 B5!
Dbt instruments -
Othar financisl asgets b 532
Memorandum itorm: Loaned or advanced ag collateral - =
HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS i 41
Memarandum iem: Loaned or advanced as collateral -
CHANGES IM THE FAIR VALUE OF THE HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLIO HEDGES OF i |
NTEREST RATE RISK
EEDEIHG DERIVATIVES (Mote 10} 164,407 221 ._:'!_EE
OM-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE - i

Loans and advances 1o credit institulions =

Loans and advances to customears =

Dbl instruments i

Eqguity instrumants =

Tangible assets _ -

— - rmme

Otherassels =~ 3
(") Presented for comparison purposes cnly.



l 2006 | 20057
MVESTMENTS (Mote 11) 1.933] 21

Aseociales 3as| 7

Jointly controlbed entities v

Subsidiaries 1,507 1,88
INSURANCE CONTRACTS LINKED TO PENSIONS (Note 17) 6,343 6.6a
TAMGIBLE ASSETS {Nota 12) 25,687 26,38

For own use 'I'G.EBT 11:4:3.

Investment propery 14 14,98

Other assels wased out under an operaling lease -
L hemorandum |lem; Acguired under a finance |eass =
NTAMNGIBLE ASSETS &

Goodwil »

Dther inangible assels -
TAX ASSETS (Nate 22) | 21,708 22,22
Current o 4
bﬂﬁfﬁmd 21.708 22,18
EPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME (Mota 13) 306 17
OTHER ASSETS (Mote 14) 4,240 a1
TOTAL ASSETS 11.553.3541 12,268,15

(") Presented for comparison purpocees only.

The accompanying Notes 1 1o 40 are an integral part
of ihe balance sheat at 31 December 2006,



- Thousands of Euros -

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2008 2006 ()

LIABILITIES e L= ; e

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES HELD FOR TRADING (Mote T) 15,895 21,180
Deposits from credit instilutions - =
Money market aperafions through counterparties - -
Cuslomer deposits -
Debt certificates (including bonds) 5 AL
Trading derivatives 15,805 23,180
Ehort positions - -

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Deposits from credit insfilutions =
Cusiomer deposits - -
Dabt certificates {inchuding bonds) -

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH EQUITY - -
Deposis frem credit insfitulions o -
Cuglomer depasis .
Drabl cerlificates (including bonds) - -
INANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST (Nole 15) 108836817 11477677
Deposits from central banks 1,800,738 1,800,361
Deposils from credit instilutions 579.206] 1,150,881
Money market operations through counterpariies - -
Customer deposits 2,508,539/ 2,321,280
Dabl cerificates (including bonds) G.985217| 6,061,088
Subordinatod liabilities . -
Other financial liabilities 41,681 35,027
HANGES IN THE FAIR VALUE OF THE HEDGED ITEMS IN PORTFOLIO HEDGES OF i '

INTEREST RATE RISK

EDGING DERIVATIVES (Naole 10) 338,070 427777
IABILITIES ASSOCIATED WITH NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE = =
Customer depogils - =
Oither habililies . -

PROVISIONS (Mote 16) 28,8501 31,012
Provisions for pensions and similar obligations | 27,348 20,357
Provisions for lanes - o
Frovisions for contingent liabilities and commilments 136 120
Other provisions 2468) 1,535

[TAX LIABILITIES (Mate 22) 3,841 8,31l
Current 3,84 6414
Draferred - 1,898!

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME (Note 13) 1,3632| 1,887

OTHER LIABILITIES (Note 14) 223| .

UITY HAVING THE SUBSTANCE OF A FINANCIAL LIABILITY -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,283,022| 11,967,946

(") Presented for comparison purposes only,



1
EQUITY 2008 | 2005(")
WALLUATION ADJUSTMENTS {G.BAT) ST
Available-for-sale financial assets {8,887 3,627
Financial liabilities at falr value through equity s .
Cash fow hodges - =
Hedges of nat invesimenis in foreign operalions - -
Exchange diffarences . -
Mon-curren! assels held for sale - .
OWVWN FUNDE (Mota 18} 287,208 206,880
Capital or endowment fund (Note 19) 151,043] 151@
Issued 151,043 151,043
Unpaid and uncalled () o 4
Share promium (Nots 20) 10,6862 10,662
Reserves (Note 21) B4 582 84,582
Accumulated reservos (losses) &4 5a2 84,582
Ruetained earnings - i
Oiher equity Instruments
Equily component of compound financlal Instraments -
Cilhar =
Less: Treasury shares - . :
Frofit for the year 40,822 50,303
Less: Dividends and remunaration -
TOTAL EQUITY (Mota 18) i 300,207
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY | 41,663,364 12 268,153
[MEMORANDUM ITEMS
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (MNote 25) T8 578,873
Financial guarantees B96,578 578 BT
Agsets oarmarked for third-party obligations - 5
Ofher confingent liabilites L
CONTIMGENT COMMITMENTS (Mote 25) | 89,539 BOT, 772
Drwable by third parfes 890,538 BO7 772
COither commitments | -

(*} Fresenled for comparison purposes only,

The accompanying Noles 1 to 40 are an integral par
of the batance shee! at 31 Dacember 2006



Trans\a¥ion of Baangal slalemonts erginady issued o

BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.

INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005 (Motes 1 to 5)

- Thousands of Euros -

Spanish ang prepared by accondance with [FA3S, s sdophed by the Eurcopan Uiwon Miodes 1,2 and
408 Mo (e everti of & discrepaacy, e Spaasi-language warsian preveds

INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME [Nota 30)
INTEREST EXPENSE AMD SIMILAR CHARGES [Note 31)
Return on eguity having the substance of a financial Bahility
Clher
INCOME FROM EQUITY INSTELUMENTS
Invesiments in associales
Invesiments in jointly confrolled onliies
Invesiments in subsbdiaries
CHher equily instrumenis
MET INTEREST INCOME
FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME (Note 32)
FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE (Note 33)
GAINSILOSSES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (MET) (Mote 34)
Hold for trading
Ciher financlal instruments al fair value through profit or loss
Avallable-for-galp inancial assels
Loans and receivables
Other
EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES (NET)
GROSS INCOME
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
FERSOMNEL EXPENSES [Mote 35)
DOTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Note 38)
DEFPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Tangible assels (Mote 12)
Intangible asseta
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
NET OPFERATING INCOME
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (NET)
Available-for-sale financial assels
Loans and racaivaibdas (Mote 9
Held-ig-maturity Investments
Mon-currerd assels hald for sale
Invesiments (Nata 11)
| Tangible assets
Goodwill
Oither inlangible assalz
Oiher assels
PROVISIONS {NET) (Mot 18)
OTHER GAINS (Note 37)
Gains on disposal of tangible asseis
Gaine on disposal of invesimenis
Other
OTHER LOSSES {Note 37)
Losses on disposal of fangible asssis
Losses on disposal of meestments
Oithar
FROFIT BEFORE TAX
INCOME TAX (Mole 22)
PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
PROFIT FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIOMS (MET)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

2008 2005 {*}
300 842 310857
(315,799) | (235,753)
(315,700) | (236,753)
76,043 75,304
1. 774 1,495
(218) {140)
1.304 4,557
3.635 {5,667)
Z3an | 10224
5 175
77,910 81,286 |
1,343 13T
ﬁ:m} ':21?55.:' 1
(2.337) (2.468)
(721) (758)
(721) (75%)
W (34)
73,782 78,588
(3.417) 2,198
2363 2.51:;
W) [ 35
(5.780) (350)
{2,358) {1.261)
26
. 55
(628 (24)
{13) |
—
7,360 77,627
(26,458) | [27,134)
40,922 50,353
40,922 50,383 |

") Pregenled for comparison punposes only.

Thes accompanying Motes 1 to 40 are an Inbegral part

of the income slalement for the year endad 31 December 2008,



Transtalion of financial glatemanats orfpinatly Issped in Spanish and propaed In sccordance wiih AFRSE, ad adopled by the Furapesan Linfon
Wavsion prevalls.

iWeles 1.2 and 4. in the avaret of & discrapancy, e Spanfsh-angrage

BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005 {Notes 1 to 5)

- Thousands of Euros —

HET INCOME RECOGMISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY
Avaifable-for-sale financlal assals

Fevaluation gainsiosses

Amounts transfered to income stalemant

Income tax

Reciassilications
Financial labilites at fair value through equity

Fevaluation gainslosses
Amounts transferred to Income sialement
Income 1ax
Rectassifications
Cash flow hedges
Revaluation gainsiosses
Amounts transfesred to ncome sialamant
Amaunts transferred al the initial carrying amount of hedged ilems
I Lo
Reclassifications
Hodges of net invesimanis in foreign operations
Revaluation galnafossas
Amounis iransferred to Income statement
Income 1ax
Reclassificatlong
Exchange differences
Translalion gainalosses
Ampunts tranzsferred 1o Income stalement
Income tax
Raclazslflcations
MNon-current assets hald for sale
Revaluation gaing
Armounts transfarmed 1o income statement
Income tax
Reclassifications
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Published prodit for the year
Adjustmenis due to changes in accownting palicy
Adjusimenis made to comrect erors
TOTAL INCOME AND EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR

MEMORANDUM ITEMS: EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS ALLOCABLE TO PRIOR
FERIODS

Effect of changes in accounling policies
Own fureds
Valuation adjustmenis
Effects of arrors
Cwn fends
Vaiuation adjustinents

2006 2008 {*} |
{10,404) (7,508)
(0404 | (7.908)
(14,662) (10,564)
(588) (1.602)
4,846 4 258
40,922 50,393
40,822 50,353
30,518 42 485
- I -

{*} Presentod for comparison purposes only,
The accompanying Nates 1 to 40 are an infegral par

of the slalement of changes in equily for the year ended 31 December 2008



Transition of finoncial stalements oniginedly issued in Spanish and prepared i sccardance wih IFREz, a8 adapled by the Ewopsan
Uriion (Moles 1.2 and 40). #n e svant of 8 discrepancy, the Spanish-lanpusgs varsion prevals.

BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPARA, S.A.

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006 AND 2005 (Notes 1 to 5)

- Thousands of Euros -

2008 2005
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the yoar 40,922 60,393
Adjustments to profit: | 34680 27 864
Depreciation of tangible assets (+) 721 758
Amartisation of intangible assots (+) . -
Imgairmant losses (pet) (+1-) 3,417 {2,108) |
Provigions (nel) (+1-) 2,350 1,281 |
Gaing/Losses on disposal of tangibie assats (+-) | - 13
Gaing/Losses on disposal of investmants {+4) - -
Tames (=) 26,458 27134
Other non-monatary lems (+/-) 1,725 95 |
Adjusted prefit 75,602 78,257
tet Increase/decrease In operating assets 578,584 ATH, 505
Financial asseis held for trading (2,668 15,869
Loans and advances 1o credif inslitulions - -
Money markel oparations through counterparties 5 B
Loans and advances to customers - Ll
Dbt instnumenis - .
Cilher eguity instruments - -
Trading derivatives (2 666) 15,859
Oiher financial assets at fair value through profit or loss = r
Loans and advances to credit inslitutions = i
Money market operations through counterparties - £
Loans end advances (o customers -
Debt instrumens -
Dther equity insiremants - .
Available-for-sale financial assals 353,014 258,861
Drabl insiruments 353,014 350,661
Cither equity instruments %] .
Loans and recaivablos i 512,025
Loans and advances to credit instituBans BE.B2T 732,961
Monoy market operations through courderparties - .
Loans and advances to customers 240,470 (220,826)
Db instrumenis T =
Oiher financial assets (525) =
Dither operaling assels 108,533) {8,040
Net increaseidecrease in oparating liabilities T10,031) (TEE, T40)
Financial liabilities held for trading | __(5.235) {20,619)
Deposits from credi instilutions - -
Money markat operations through counferparties o -
Customer deposiis . -
Dabt certificates (including bonds) E - - -
Trading derivatives {5,285) (20,619)
Shor posilions - %
Other financial Babililies at fair vaiue through profit or [oss - -
Depasiz from cradit inslitulions - -
Cusiomer deposils ; o)
Dobt cerificates {including bonds) i -

{*} Presented for comparison purposes anly.



Financial Babllities al fair value Mrough agquity
Deposils fram credit instilulions
Customer deposits
Debi cerificalas (Inclieding bands)

Financial kabilties measured at amorisad cost

2008 {*) |

| {500,298)

(756.530)

Diaposils from cendral banks
Deposils from credil instilutions

1,122.628)

Money markel operations through counterparties

(578,390)

(310,508) |

Customer deposils

178,715

194,911

Dabi carfificatas {including bonds)

{108,573)

475,893

Diher financial liabdilies
Ciher oparafing lisbililies
Total net cash flows from operating activities (1)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Invesiments {-}
Subsidiaries, joinlly controlled enfiies and associates
Tangible aseals
Infanglble assais

6,954

5,703

(105,450

BADS

{55,845}

188,022

{5,012}

(1,303)

(3,000

(1,255}

(12)

A8}

-

Held-io-malurily invesiments
Other finangial assels

Other azzets

Dlvestments (+)

Subsidiaries, joinily controllad enlilies and assoclales

Tangibls s552ls
Indangible assels

Held-to-malurily investmants

Oither financlal assels

Oher assels

Total net cagh flows from investing aclivities [2)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance/Redemplion of capial or endowmenl fund (+/-)

Actuisilion of oan equity nstrumants (<)

Dispesal of own adquily instruments (+)

Issuance/Redamplion of non-voting aguily unds {+-)

issuanceRedempiion of other equity nsiruments (+/-)
:wfﬂmmpm of equity having the substance of a financial kabilily

Issuance/Redemplion of subordinaled kabllilies (+-)

Issuance/Redemplion of other long-term liabilies {+/-)

Dividendsiinterest pald (-}

(50,383}

(61,812) |

Oiher Bems related Lo financing aclivillas (+1-)

Total net cash flows from financing activities (3}

(50,353)

Effect of exchange rates changes on cash and cash aguivalents (4)

{61,812)

NET INCREASE/DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(1424344

(111,250}

125,907

Cagh and cash egquivalonts at beginning of year

334,623

208,716

Cash and cash eguivalents at end of year

223,373

334,623

i*) Presentad for comparison purposes onby.

The accompanying Notas 1 io 40 are an integral part
of the cash Bow siatement for the year anded 31 Dacamber

2008,



Trangtalion of fnanclal slalements onghnally issued in Spanish and prepared in accordsnce wilth IFRSs, a2 adopled by the Ewopsan
Unian (Wotes 1,2 and 40). I ihe avent of & dlscragancy. the Spanish-angage warsion provaila,

BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPANA, S.A.

Notes to the Financlal Statements
for the Year Ended 31 December 2006

basis of presentation tements and other informa
1.1, Introduction

Banco de Crédilo Local de Espafa, 5.A. ("the Bank™) is a privale-law entity, incorporaled on 23 July 1925, subject to the
rules and ragulations applicable o banks cperating in Spain and is par of the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group
(the "BEVA Group”) which is subject o the Intemalional Financial Reporfing Standards (IFRSs), as adopled by the
Eurapean Union (EU- IFRSs).

The bylaws and other public infarmation on the Bank can be consulted at its registerad office (Plaza de Santa de Barbara
n® 2, Madrid),

The financial slalemonis must be interpreted within the context of the Group wilhin which the Bank carres on its
business acliviies,

The Bank's financial stalements for 2005 were approved by the shareholders al the Anual General Meeting of the Bank
on 1.June 2006. The 2008 financial sialemants of the bank have not yet baen approved by ils shareholders at the Annual
General Meeling, Howewver, the Bank's Board of Directors considers that the aforementioped financia statemants will be
approved without any changes.

The Bank's business activities are conducled as part of the inslitulional business of the BEVA Group focus mainly on the
financing of Spanish public-sector antities and their dependent agencies or entiies, through 53 branch offices focated in
the main cifies of the aulonomous communities in Spain and incleded in BEVA's commercial nebwork.

1.2. Basis of presantation of the financial statements

On 22 December 2004, ihe Bank of Spaln issued Circular 472004 on Public and Confidential Financial Reporing Rules
and Farrnals.

The purpose of this new accounling Circular Is to modify the accounling syslem of Spanish credit institulions by adapting
it to the new accounting environment arising from the adapiion by the European Union, through several EC Regulalions,
of the Internadional Financial Repording Standards ("EL- IFRSs") under Regulation (EC) no, 1808/2002 of the Eurapean
Pariiament and of the Council of 19 July 2002 on the application of Intarnational Accounting Slandards.

The Bank's financial staternenis of 2005 were prepared by the Bank's directors {at the Board Mesling on March 15,
2007} on the besis of the accounling records keplt by the Bank in accordance with Bank of Spain Circudar 402004,
reprasanting Raidy the bank’s equity and financial position al December 31, 2008, and the resulls of its operalions, tho
changes in consolidated equity and the consolidated cash flows in 2006,

All accounting policies and méasurement bases wilh a material effect on the financial statements were applied in their
preparabion.

1.3, Comparative information

The Infarmation relating to 2005 contained in these notes 1o the financial statements is presented, eolely for comparisan
purposes, with informalion relaling to 2005 and, accordingly, it does noil conslilule the Bank's siatutory financial
statemants for 2005,



1.4. Responsibility for the information and for the estimates made

Tha information in these financial statements is the responsibility of the Bank's directore. in preparing these financial
statemants estimates ware cocastonally made by the Bank in order to quanlify ceriain of the assets, liabilifies, Incoma,
expenses and commitments repored hereln, These estimates relate mainly o the Tellowing:

- Theimpaiwment losses on cartain agssls.

- The assumptions used in the acluanial calculation of the posl-employment benefit IlabiEies and commitments.
- The useh life of tangible assols.

= Tha fair value of cartain unquoted assels.

Although these esfimates were made on the basis of the best information availsble at 31 December 2008 on the avants
analysed, events that might fake place in the fulure might make it necessary o change these estimates {upwards or
downwards) in coming years.

1.5. Environmental impact

Al 31 December 2008 Ihe Bank's financlal stalemenis did not disclose any item thalt should be included in the
environmental information document envisaged in ihe related Minisiry of the Econcmy Order dated & Oclober 2001,

1.6. Report on the activity of the Customer Care Department and the Customer Ombudsman

As required by the Minisiry of Economy Order ECO/T34/2004, of 11 March 2004, on customer care deparbments and
aervices and customer ombudsmen &t fingncial inglilutions and since fhe Bank befongs to the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya
Argentaria Group, the Bank adhered to the BEBVA's Rules on Customer Care Depariment and Cusfomer Ombudsman
and appointed as Customer Ombudsman the Individual appointed by BEVA at any given lime.

iim i i rils

Law 13/1892, of ¥ June, and Bank of Spain Circular 51993 and subsequent amendments thereto regulate
the minimum capital requirements for Spanish credit institutions — both as individual entities and as
consolidated groups — and the criteria for calculating the capital ratic.

At 31 December 2006 and 2005, the Bank's eligible capital exceeded the minimum required under the
aforementioned regulations,

2. Accountin icies an nt as

The accounting poficies and measurement bases applied in preparing the Bank's financlal statements were as follows:

a) Fair valuo

The fair value of an asset or a liability on a given date is taken 1o be the smount for which it could be bought or sold on
ihat date by two knowledgeable, independent parles in an arm's bengih transackon acling prudenily. The most objective
and common reference for the fair value of an asset or a lsbilily is the price that would be paid for it on an organised,
trangparent and deap market ("quoled price” or “market price”),

IF thvere is no market price for a given asset or Babilily, il fair value is estimated on the basis of the price established in
recent transachions involving similar instruments and, In the absence thereol, of valuation fechniques suMficlenty usad by
the irernalionsl Fnancial community, taking info accound the specific features of the asset or liabiity lo be measured
and, in particular, he varicus types of risk associaled with the asset or liability. However, tha lUmitations inherent fo the
valuation techniques developed and the possible inaccuracies of the assumptions required by these tochnigues may
signdly that the fair value of an asset or liabillty thus estimated does not colncide axacly with the price for which the asset
or liability cousd be purchased or sold an the measurement dale.

b}  Financial instruments
b.1} Classiflcation
fruar i - these Include the financial assets and liabilities acquited for tho purpose of

genarating & prafit in the near tarm from fluctuations in thelr prices or from diffierences between Sheir purchass and sale
prices and aleo include financial derivatives nol considared io qualify for hedge accouniing,

10



Available-for-sale financial assets: this calegory includes debd instruments nel classified as held-lo-maturity
investmants, or as financial assets ai fair valus Ihrough profil or loss and equily Instruments ssued by entiies other than
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlied enfities, provided that such instruments have nol been classilied as
financial assols held for irading or as ofher financial assets at fair vahoe through profit or loss.

Leoans and receivables: this category includes financing gramted io third parfies, based on their naturg, irespecive of
ha type of borrower and the form of financing-

Thes Bank generally mtends to hold the loans and credits granted by it wnfil their inel meturity; therefore, they are
praseniad in the balance sheei at their amordised cosi (which includes any correclons required fo refisct the eslimated
impairmant losses).

Elnancial liabilitiss at amortised cost: ihis catagory Incledas the financial Eshililies not included in any other celegony
i the balanca sheet which arise from the ordinary deposit-laking aclivibies camied on by financial instifutions, irmespeciive
of their instromentation and malurily.

b.2} Measurement

Al financial msiruments ara initially recognised ol falr value which, in the absonce of evidance o the contrary, is deamed
iz be the Wansaciion price, These inslruments will subsequently be measured on the basis of their classification. In the
case of guoted financial instruments, fair value will b2 taken 1o be their market price, For ungquaoted financial instivments,
fair walue will be obtained using the valualion techniques customarily wsad in tha market,

Efnancial assobs:

Financial assels are measured al fair value, excepl for
» Loans and receivables,

. Held-to-maturily invesimants, and

. Equity msiruments whose fair value cannol be determined in a sufficiently chjachive manner and financia!
derivalives that have those instruments as their undestying and are settled by delivery of those inslruments.

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investmants are measured af amorised cost using the effsclive intarest
method. Amorised cost is understood to be the acquisiion cost of a financial asset or liability minus principal
ropayments, plus or minug, as approprabe, he cumulative amortisalion (as reftected in the income slalemenls) of any
differance between the inltial cost and the maturity amount, In the case of financial assats, amortisad cost futhermore
includes any reduclions for impairment or uncolleclibility.

The effeclive intaresl rate is the discoun rate that oxaclly matches the carying amouni of a financial instrumant (o all fs
ostimated cash flows of all kinds during iz residual e, For fixed rabs firancial instruments, the effectve inlerast rale
coincides with the contraciual interest rate established on the acguisiton date ples, whers applicabls, the fees and
fransackon costs thal, because of ihelr nature, can be egqualed with a rate of intarest, in the case of {loating rale financial
Instrumenis, ike effective nlerest rate coincides with the rate of refurn prevailing in all conneclions undil the date on
which the referance interes rale iz 1o be revised again.

Equily instruments whose fair value cannof be delermined in a sufficlently objective manner and financial dervatives thal
have those instrumenis as thelr undenying and are saliled by delivery of those Instrumeants are measured al acgulsiton
cost adjusied, where appropriaie, by any relaled impakrment [ogs.

Eurvangiatl iralilifies.
Financial liabiliies are measurad al amorisad cost, except for:

. Those included under "Financial Lisbilities Hald for Trading”, “Financial Liakbilifes at Fair Value through Profil or
Loss” and “Financial Liabilities at Fair Vatee through Equity” and the financial liabiitios designated as hedged
ifarns in fair valuo hedges of as hedging nstruments, wivich ane all measured at fair value, and

. Financial derivafres that have as their underlying equity instrumeantis whose {ai value cannot be determined in &
sufficienty objeclive manner and are seliled by delivary of those inslruments; these derivatives are measurod af
cost,

b.3} Recognition of changos in the measurement of financlal assets and liabilities

Based on the classificalion of financial instruments, any changes In the carrying amounts of the financal assels and
liabilities classified as hold for trading ere recognisad wilh & balancing entry in the Income statement, A distinciion is
made between the changes resulling from the accneal of inberest and similar ilems, which are recognised wnder "ntarest
and Similar Incoma” or “interest Expense and Similar Charges®, as appropriate, and ihose arising for olber reasons,
which are racognisad al their nat amount under “Gains/Losses on Financial Assets and Liab@ities® In ihe Income
ataterment.
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Valuation adjustmenis arising on available-for-sale financial assels are recognised temporarly under “Valuation
Adjustments - Avallable-for-Sale Financial Assels”, unless they relale lo exchange dilerences, in which case they are
recognised temporarly under "Valualion Adjusimants - Exchange Diffarencss”,

Nems charged or crediled to "Valuafion Adjusiments - Available-for-Sale Financial Assels” and "Valuation Adjustments -
Exchange Differences” remain in the Bank's aquity until the asset giving riga lo them is derecognised, at which lime they
ari recognisad in ihe income sialemeni.

In the specific case of financial instruments designated as hedged ilems or hedging instruments in fair value hedges
(Mote 2-d), geins and |osses arfising on both the hadging instruments and the hedged ilems — atirbutable to the type of
rlek being hedged — are recognised directly In the income statemand.

b.4] Impaimmaent

A financial asset is considered lo be Impaired ~ and therefore fs carrying amount is adjusted to reflect the effect of
impairmant — when ihare is objective evidance that evenls have occurred which:

. in the case of debl instruments (loans and Debl instruments), give rise to a negative impact on the fulure cash
flows 1hat were esfimaled al the fransaction date,

. In the case of oguily instruments, mean that thelr carrying amount cannot be recoverad,

A% a general nde, the carrying amounl of impaired financial instruments is adjusted with a charge to the income
statement for the pericd in which the impairment becomes evident, and the reversal of previously recognised impairment
losses is recagnised in the income statement for the petiod in which the impairment ceases to exist or s reduced,

Balances are considered to be impaired, and the interest accreal is suspended, when there are reasonable doubls as to
their full recovery andfor the collaction of the related Inlerest for the amounts and on the dates inifially agreed upon,
taking into account the guarantees received by the enlilies o secura {in part or in fll) the colleclion of the relsted
balances. Amaunts collecled in relation to impaired lpans and recelvables are used to recognise the related accrued
interast and the remainder, if any, lo reduce the principal amount aulstanding.

Whan ihe recovery of any recognised amouni is considered unlikely, the amount of the impairmand is derecognised,
wilhout prejudice o any actiona that the Bank may iniliale o seek collection of the amount receivable untd its rights are
extinguished by expiry of the statule-of-limilations parod, forgiveness or any other cause.

Dabt instrumonis measured af amortlsed cost:

The amount of an impairment loss incurred on a debt instrumant measured al amorised cost is equal 1o the posilive

difference betwoen s carrying amount and the prasent value of its estimatad fulure cash flows. However, the market

value of quoled debt instruments is deemed to be & reliable estimate of the present value of Thelr future cash Nows.

In estimating the fulure cash fows of debi insirumeanis tha following should be taken inte account:

. All the emounts thal are expecled to be oblained over the residual lifle of the instrument, including, where
appropriate, these which may resull from the collateral provided for the Instrement (less the cosls for obtaining
and subaequanily aelling 1he collateral),

. The various iypes of risk 1o which each inslrument ks subject. and

" The circumstances in which collections will foreseeably be mada,

Thesa cash flows are subsequently discounled using the instrument's efective interast rate (if its contraciual rate |s
fiwed) or the effective contraciual interest rate at the discownt date (i It s variable),

Impalrment losses an these assels are assessad as follows:

" Individually, for all significant debt instrumente and for instruments which, although not material, are susceplible 1o
baing classified in homogeneous groups of instruments with simdar risk characteristics: instrument type, deblor's
industry and gecgraphical location, type of guarantee or collateral, age of pasi-tue amounts, etc.

" Colleclively, in all other cases.,

Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 establishes the crileria for determining impairment losses resulting fram materialisation of
the insetvency risk of the obfigors. Under these crileria, a debit insfrument Is impaired due to insolvency:

" When there is evidance of a delerioration of the obligar's ability 1o pay, either because il Is In arrears or for other
reasons, andior

- When couniry risk materialkses; country risk is consldered o be the rsk associated with deblors residant in @
given country arising from circumsiances olher than narmal commercial rigk.
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Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 classifies transactions on the basis of the nalure of the obligors, the conditions of the
couwnlries in which fhey reside, transaction sladus, type of associated guaraniees, age of past-dues, ete. For each of
these figk groups it establishes the minlmum impairment losses (idenfified losses”) that musl be recognised in the
financial slatemanis of the entifies.

In addition to lhe recognilion of identified losses, Bank of Spain Circular 412004 requires provisioning for the losses
inherend in debl Inslruments nol measured ot fair value through profil or loss and in confingenl risks classified as
standard, iaking into account ihe historical exparence of impairment and the ofher circumstances known at the fime of
the assessment. For these purposes. inherent losses are the losses incumed at the date of the financial statemenis,
calculated using statistical procedures that have not been allogated to specific transactions.

Inherent losses are quanliied by applying the parameters established by the Bank of Spain on the basis of ils experience
and of the information available to it on the Spanish banking indusiry.

Other dabd instruments:

The impairment losses on debl instruments included In the available-for-sale financial assat portlolin is the posinog
difference between their acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment or amodisation) and their fair value less any
impairment loss previously recognised In the income slatement,

When thera is objective evidence thal the negalive diferences arising on measuremant of these assels aro due fo
impairment, ihey are no longer classified as “Valuation Adjustments - Available-for-Sale Financial Assels” and are
recognised in Ihe income siatement. If all or part of the mmpairmen! losses are subsequently reversed, the reversed
amguni would be recagnized in the incomas statement for the pariod inwhich the reversal oecurmaed.

Likewise, in tho case of debt instruments classified as non-current assets held for sale, losses previously recognised in
the Bank's equily are considered to be realised and are recagnised in the income stalement on the date the instrumanis
are so classified,

Equity instruments messured at cost;

The Impairment wsses on aguity inslruments measured at acquisition cost are equal to tha difference between their
carrying amount and the present value of expecisd future cash flows discounted at the markel rate of return for similar
sacurities. Thase impairment losses are determined taking info accaunt the equity of the investes (excepl for valuadion
adjusiments due to cash flow hedges) per the last approved balance sheel, adjusted for the unrealised gains al the
mgdsirement date.

Impairmend loases are recognised in the incoma statement for the period In which they ariso as a direct reduction of the
cost of the instrument, These losses may only be roversad subseguently in tha event of the sale of Ihe relaled assals,

c]  Recognition of income and expenses
The mest significant critoria used by the Bank to recognize ils income and expenses are summarised as follows:

Interast incomae, interesl axpenses and similar ifems;

As & general rule, interes! income, intéres! expensos and similar iterne are recognised on the basis of their period of
acchual using the efleckive intarest method. Speciflcally, dividends received from other companies are recognlsed as
income when the companies’ igh! to raceiva them arizes.

Specifically, loan arrangement feos, basically loan crigination and spplication fees, are deferred and recognised in the
income staterment over the lifa of the loan. The direct costs incurred in amanging these iransactions can be deducted
from the amount thus recognised. Bank of Spain Circular 4/2004 sfiputates that, in the absence of cost accounting to
determine direct costs, these costs may be offsal against the arangement fea by up to 0.4% of the loan principsal, subject
to a limit of EUR 400 per ransaction; this amount is crediled to the income siateman! when the lean is arranged and
reduces the aforemenfioned deferred fees.

However, when a debt instrument is deemed to be impaired individually or is included in a group of nstruments that are
impaired because of amourds more than thrae months past-due, the recognilion of accrued interest in the income
slatemenl i# suspended. This interest is recognised for accoumling purposes when collected, as a reversal of the
mpairment kose .

Commissions, fees and similar items:;

Fee and commission income and expenses are recegnised in the income stalerent using criteria thal vary according lo
fhedr nalure, The most significant fee and commission items are as follows:

» Those relaling Lo financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, which are recognisod
whan collected
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. Those arising from transsclions or services thal are provided aver a period of lime, which are recognisad over the
life of these fransaclions or services.

. These relating to & single act, which are recognised when the single acl Is carried gut.
Mon-finance Income and expenses:

These are recognisad for acoounting purposes on an accrual basis,

Deferrad collechions and paymends;

These afe recognised for accounling purposes at the amount resufling from discounding the expacied cash flows at
market rales,

dj Financlal derivatives and hedge accounting

Finarcial darivalives are instruments thal permit the transfer to third parties of all or part of the credit andfor market risks
aseociated wilh balances and transactions, using interest rates, specific indices, equity prices, crogs-currency exchange
rates or other simitar benchmarks as underlyings.

All derivalives are recognised in the balance sheet at fair value from e trade date. If the falr value of a denvative =
posilive, it is recognised as an asset and if it is negalive, it is recognised as a Fabilty. Unless there is evidence to the
contrary, Ihe fair value of the derivatives on the Irade date is deemed to be equal to the transactan price. Changes in ha
falr value of derivalives after the Irade date are recognised wilh a batancing eniry under "Gaina/Losses on Financial
Assets and Liabililies” in the income stalement. Spacifically, the fair value of the standard financial derivatives included in
Ihe held for trading potfolios is equal to their daily quoted price. I, for excaptional reasons, their quoted price cannol be
delammined on 8 given dale, these derivalives ase measured using methods similar 1o those used to measure over-the-
countar ('OTCT) derivatives.

The fair value of DTC dedvatives is equal 1o the sum of the future cash flows ariging from the instrument, discounted to
present value al the measurement dale ("present valus® or “theorelical close™) using valation techniques commonly
used by the financial markels, including net present value {NPV), oplion pricing modals, elc,

Financial derivallves thal have as thelr underlying equity instruments whose fair value cannol be determined in a
sulfichanily objective manner and are setfled by delivery of fhose instruments, are measured @t cost,

Hodge accounling

A financial derivalive qualifies for hedge accounding only if it meets all of the Tollowing condilions:

- The dorivalive hadges one of the following three types of exposure;

. Changes in the fair value of assels and liabiities due 1o fiucluations in the interest mate andior exchangs rate o
which the pogition or balance lo be hedged is subject (*fair value hedge"),

. Changes in the estimated cash flows arising from financlal assets and Habilitles and highly probable forecasi
ransactions (“cash flow hodge™),

" The net invesiment in a foreign operation (*hedge of a net investment in a foreign oparation”}, which, in praclice,
is etpuivalent to a cash flaw hedge.

- ltis effeckve in ofisedling a significant portlon of the risk inherent in the hedged item or posilion over the expeched tem
of the hedge, which means thal:

. Al the dale of arangement the hedge is expected, under normal conditions, 1o be highty effective {"prospeciive
alfectiveness").

i There s sufficient evidence |hal the hedge was fully elactive during the whole life of the hedged item ar position
(Crefrospactive affectivensss®)

- There must be adequale documentation evidencing the specific designation of the financial derivative to hedge ceran
balances o lransactions and how this hedgs was intended to be achieved (providod that this Is consistent with the
Bank's managemeant of own risks).

All hedges arranged by the Bank are fair value hedges,

a} Pension and other obligations to employees

The most significant accounting policies as well as the mos! relevant information conceming "Pansion commiimenisand
other commitmants 1o employess” ars described in Mole 17,
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f) Exchanpe differences
Asseta, labllites and fulures

Assets and liabilities In foreign currencles and unmawned forward foresgn curroncy purchases and sales arranged for
hedging purposes have been iranslated to guros at the average exchange rales in he Spanish spol foreign exchange
market (using the dollar axchange rale an local markets for currencies not listed on those markets) at the and of each

yaar, mxcapt for

= non-current investments in securities denominaled in foreign currencies and financed in euros or & currency other
ihan investiment currency, which were valued al hislorical exchange rales.

- unmaiured forward foreign cumency purchases and sales nod arranged for hedging purposes, which were valuad ai
Ihi exchange rabes ruling on lhda foreard foreign exchangs market al year-end, published by the Bank of Spain io

thiz and,

The breakdown of b main foreign curency balances in the balance sheet at 31 Decamber 2008 and 2008, bazed on

the nature of the relaled lems, is as follows:

2008

Equivalent Valueg in Thousands |
of Euros |

Assals & Liabilities 1
Financial asselafiabiliies heid for rading 347 37 |
Avaltable-for-sale financial assels 183,073 -
Loang and recafvablos LT -
Dither 1.324 22,784
Total 184 804 23,111 |
Equivalont Valug in Thousands
2008 of Euros
- N Assets Liabllites
Financial assetsfliabiibes hald for frading 120 120
Avalighle-for-gale financlal asselis 192,359 =
Loane and recaivables 22 -
Cther - 33,080
Total 152,541 33,240
al Tangible assets
Tamgible assals for gt wse:

Funcfional tangible assels -incuding

assels raceived by tha Bank in full or partial satisfaciion of finencial assets

reprasenting recelvables from third paries which are intended to be hald for confinuing use and tangible assels acquirod

under finance leases- are presented at acquisition cosl k2es the relaled accumutated depreclation, and any estimated

impairment losses (net carryving amount higher than rakated fair value),

Depreciation is calculaled by the siraighl-line melhod on the basis of the acquisiltion cost of the assets less thedr residus
vakse. The land on which the buildings and other structures stand has an indefinite lile and, theredors, (s nol deprecialed,

The tangible asset depreciation charge is recognised in e income statement and is calculefed basically using the
following depreciation rates (based on the average years of estimated usselul lifa of the varous assols):

Annual
- Rato
Buildings for own use 1.33% (o 4%
Furnibure B% to 1059
Flxhures 6% 1o 12%
CHfice and automation eguipment B b 25,
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The Bank assess at the repoarking dale whether there is any internal or axternal indication that an asset may be impaired
ii.e. iz carying amount exceeds s recoverable amound). In this case the carmying amount of the assel & reduced 1o ils
recoverable amount and future deprecialion charges are adjusied in proporion to the new remaining veeful life and o
the revised carrying amount,

Himitarly, if there is an indicafion of a recoveary in the value of & tangide assel, the Bank recognises the revearsal of tha
impairment loss recognised in prior periods and, consequenlly, adjusis the future depreciation charges. In no
circumstances may the reversal of an impairmen! foss on an assel raise lts camylng amount above thal which i1 would
have if no impasrment losses had been recognised in prior years.

Upkeep and malntenance expenses relafing o tangfbhle assels for own use are recognised as an expense In the perod i
which fthay arae incurrad.

h) Tax assels and liabllities

The corporalion fax expense is recognised in the income stalemeant, excapt when it results from a transaction recognised
diracty in oguily, in which case the relaled tax sffect is also recagnisad in oguity,

The current income lax expense s calculated by aggragating the current tax arlsing from the application of the retaled
tax rale 1o the taxable profil for The pericd (afler deducting the lax credits sllowable for tax purposes) and he change in
deferred lax assels and [iabilities recognized in the income stalement,

Daferred tax assels and habllies incude tempotary differences, measured al the amount expecled 1o be payable or
recoverable on diferences batween the carrying amounts of assets and liabiliies and their tax bases, and fax loss and

fax credil carryforwards, These amounis are measured af the ta rates that sre expected to apply in the period whan lha
assat s realised or tha liabilily sedtied.

[Deferrad tax assels are recogniged to the extent thai it |s consldered probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
in tha future against which the defarrad lax a=sels can be ulilized.

The deferred tax agsets and linbilifes recognised are reassessed af each reporling date in order to ascertain whethar
ihey shill exigl, and the appropriate adjustments ane made on the basis of the findings of the analyses performed.

Income and expensss recognised directly in equily are accounled for as lemporary diffarences,
i} Provisions and contingent llabilitios

Provisions are present obligations arsing from legal or conlraciual requirensents, valid expaclalions created by the Bank
in third pariies regarding the assumption of cerain types of responsidities, or virtual cantainty as to the future course of
reglilalion in paricular respecis, especially proposed new kegislation that tha Bank cannod awoid.

Provisicns are recognised in the balance shaet when each and every one of the following requirements |s met: the Bank
has a present obligation ansing from a past ovent and, al the balance shooal dade, it 5 more likely than nod that the
obligafion will have o be sellled; it i3 probable thal to seltie the obligation the enBity will have lo give up resources
ambodying economic benefils; and a reliable estimale can be made of the amount of the obligalion.

Conlingent llabilies are possible obligations of the Bank tha arise from past evenls and whose exislence is condilional
on fhe occurrenca or non-sccurence of one or mone fulure events not wholly within the conired of the Bank. They includs
iha present cbligalions of the Bank when it is nol probable that an outllow of resounces embodying economic benefits will
be required to seltle them or when, in exiremely rare cases, their amount cannot be measured with sufficiend raliakbility.
Confingeni habiilies are reported as off-balance sheel Hems.

Conlingeni assets are possible assels thal arise from past events and whose exislence is condilional on, and witl be
confirmed only by 1he occurrence or non-pocurrence of evenis beyond the conirol of the Bank, Contingent assels are nof
recognized In the balance sheet or in the income staterment, however, they are disclosed in the noles 1o financial
statemenis, provided thal it is probable that These assels will ghve rise 1o an increase i resources embodying econamic
benediis,



I Transfers of financial aasets and derecognition of financial assels and |labllities

The accounting treatment of iransfers of financial assels depends on the extenl to which the risks and rewands
associaled with the fransferred assels are tfransferred to third parties. If the Bank Iransfers substaniially il the nsks and
reswards o third paries, the transferred financial assat iz derecognized and any righd or obligation retained or crested as
a resull of he ranskfer is rocognised simultanaously.

If the Bank ratains substantally all the risks and rewards associalad with the transferred financial asset, ihe transfeamed
financial assel & nol derecognised and conlinues 10 be measured wEing the same critera as hose used prier o lhe
trangfer.

Financial asssts are only derecognized when the cash flows they generate have been sxlinguished or when substantally
all the inherant risks and rewards have been fransfemed. Similarky, financial liabilikes are only derecognised when lha
ohligations thay generale have been exfinguished or when they sre acquired (with the intenBon sither 16 cancel tham or

to re-placa tham).
K} Ohwn equity instruments
At 3 December 2008 and 2005, the Bank did nol hodd any treasury shares,

I} Bank share-based paymenis

in tha lasi quarter of 2008, cerjain BBVA Group companias in Spain mplemented a corporate schams, aimed &t their
permanant emplovess, for ihe purchase of Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argerdaria, 5.4 shares at a 10% discount. A folal of
4 840 shares were purchased by Banco de Crédito Local, 5.4 employess undar this schems in 2005 a1 a market price
of EUR 14,68 per share. During ihal period the possihility of finencing the purchase was offered. A1 31 December 2008,
the outstanding balance of these financing amangements amounted to EUR § fhousand, & new phasea of this scheme
was developed in 2008, without the possibiity of financing, as a result of which a further 304 shares ware purchasad,

The cost of this scheme % recognised with a chargo 1o "Parsonnil Expenses” in the incorme stabemenl,

m) Termination benefits

Tarmination benefits musl be recognized whean the Bank is commilted io tarminating contracts with employess and has a
formal deteiled termination plan. Thera aré o redundancy plans making i necessary fo mcord a provision in 1hes
coneciion.

3. Distribution of profit

The disiribulion of the Bank's nel profit for 2008 thal will be proposed by the Board of Direclors lor approval by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeling is 1o pay a dividend for the whole profit amount, Le, EUR 40,822 thousand.

unaration and other benefits paid to the Bank's directors

Faolbywing iz an itemised delall of remunerafion paid to each member of the Board of Directors in 2006

housands of Euros)
POSITION ITEM AMOUNT
José Ramén Guerediaga Mendiola (*) CHAIRMAN : -
Hita Barterd Molla MRECTOR Allendance fees a7
Luis Escauneza Ibdfez (**} DIRECTOR - -
Pedro Fontana Gargia (%) DIRECTOR F . :
Ignaco Marco-Gardogul Ibahez DIRECTOR Allandance fees ar
Ramén Herera Otal (%) DIRECTOR - - -
Vicenbe de la Parra Gomaz (") DIRECTOR . -
Total 19,4

("] Momber of tho managamant feam of Banco Bilbao Vigocaya Argentaria, 5.8, His position as dirsector of Banco de Crédito Local do
Ezpana. 3.A s nol reminaraied.

(*"ihember af ihe managamant ieam of Benco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentarle. 5.4 who look eary retirormant. His posilion as dirscior of
Banco de Crediio Local de Espafia, 5.4, i nat ramunéraied.

Al 31 December 2008 and 2005, the Bank had no pension of file insurance obligations to the mambers of the Board of
Direciors.
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5. Risk exposure

Transaclions with financial insiruments may invalve the aszumption or fransfer of one or mose types of sk by financial
institulions, The risks associaled with financial insirumeants ara;

a) Markel risks: these arise as a conseguance of holding financial instrumenis whose velue may be affected by
changes in market conditions; they Include (heea lypes of fsk:

iy Foreign cumency risk, which ariees a3 a resull of charges in the exchange rale between
currencies,

fii} Fair value inlerest rale risk, which arizes a3 a resull of changes in market Inderest rates.

iy Price risk, which anises as a resull of changes in market prices, due either ko factors spacific 1o the
individual instrument or to factors thal affect all instruments traded on the mankel.

b) Credi risk: this is tha risk that one of the parties io the financial instrument agreement will fall fo honowr is
contractual obligations due io the insobvency or incapacily of the individuals or legal entifties Involved and will
cause the other parly to incur a inancial loss,

¢}  Liguidity risk: occasionally referred fo as funding risk, this arizes elther because (e endily may be unable to sell
a financial esset quickly af an amouni closa o it falr value, or because the enlily may encounter difitcufly @
finding funds to mest commitmenis assocciaied with finenclal Instrurmenis,

The Bank, as a member of the BBVA Group, parlicipates in the Group's global risk management system which ks based
on three components: a corporale risk management structure; a set of books, circuits and procedures that make up the
different risk managemanl systems; and an intemnal control system. Following is 8 summary of the three companents:

Corporate risk managemont structura
The Bank is nlegraled in the sama siruclure as the BBVA Group, which is summarizsed as follows:

+ The Board of Directors of BEBVA is the most sanior body that determines the Bank's risk policy and approves any
non-delegated lransackons.

+  The Lending Commillee, which regorts to the Board of Direclors of BEVA, is a spedialised body whose functions
inclide, inter alia: assessmeni of the Bank's risk management in farms of risk profile and capital map (capitad-at-rizk],
broken down by business and area of aclivily; evaluation of the general riek policies, entailing the establishrent of
limits by Iype of risk or business, and of management resourcas, procedures and syslems, structures and processes,
approval of individual or group risks that may affect the Bank's solvency, in keeping wilh the eslabfished delegation
syslemy analysis and approval, where appropriate, of credil risks in terms of maximim cusiomer o group exXposUne
ronitering of the Bank's various risks, oversasing their compliance with the profile defined by the Bank: adherence lo
the recommendalions of regulatory and supervisory bodies, and fhair implemeantation in (he Bank's risk manageman
maodel; and analysis of the Bank's risk control systems.

»  The Bank's Assel-Liability Committes (ALCO) is responsible for actively managing 1he Bank's structural liquidity and
interast rate fsks, and ks cone capital,

* Tha Intemal Risk Commillee, which & composed of the Bank's corporate risk managers, is responsible for
devaloping and implemending BBVA's risk management model and ensuring on a day-lo-day basis thal (he risks
assumid by the Bank ara in line with fhe fanget risk profile defined by e senlor goverming bodles,

= The Technical Transaciions Commilles anatyses and appioves, where appropriale, the financial fransactions and
programmes thet are within its level of avlharisation, ard refars any lransacfions exceeding the scope of its
delageted powers o fhe Landing Commiliee,

Tools , circuits and procedures

The Group has Implemented an integral risk management system dasigned to cater for the needs arising in relalion 1o
ihe various fypes of risk; this promipted it 1o equip the managemant processes for each risk with measurement tools for
risk acceplance, assessmant and menitoring end to define the appropriate circuils and procedures, which are reflocted in
manuals that also include management criteria. Specifically, the main risk managemeni actwilies parformed are as
foliows: caloulation of the risk exposures of the various portfollos, considering any redated mifigating factors (netting,
collaleral, ¢ic); calculalion of the probability of defeult (PD), loss severly and expecled ioss of each portfolio, and
azsigrment of the PD lo the new transactions (ralings and scorings); measurament of the values-at-risk of the porfaollos
Basod on varnous scenarios using historical and Monle Caclo simudstions; establishment of limis to the potenlial losses
based on the varlous risks incurred; determinafion of the possible impaciz of the structural risks on the income
statemant; setling of limits and alors to safaguard the Group's liguidity; idenlification and quantificaion of operafional
risks by business line to enable the miligation of these riaks through comeclive measures: and definition of efficient
circuils and procedures which caniibule ta the achiovament of the langets set,
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Internal control - Risk Maps

The Group has an independent funclion which, I Keeping with the recommendalions of the regulators, draws up Risk
Maps idenllifving any gaps in the Group's risk managamant and the best practices, and establishes workingn plans with
tha various businese areas o ramedy these gapa.

a8} STRUCTURAL INTEREST RATE RISH

The aim of gn-balance-shee! interesi rate risk managameant is 1o maintain the Bank’s exposure io market interest rale
{luciuations at levels in keaping with is risk siralegy and profile. To this and, the ALCO achvaly manageas lhe balance
sheat through transachions infended to oplimise the bevel of risk assumed in reistion to the expecled resulls, thus
enakbding the Bank to comply with the tolerable rigk limils,

The ALCO bases Iis activilles on the Interest rale risk measuremenis perlormed by the Risk Area, Acling as an
independent unif, ihe Risk Area paricdically quantifies the impact of interast rale fluctuations on the Bank's nel interesl

incoma and economic value.

In addibon lo measuring songilivily fo 100-bagis-poind changes In market interest rates, the Bank performs probabilistic
caiculations o delerming the economic caplial for struciurel interest rate risk in the Bank's banking aclivity besad an
interast rala curve simulalion modaks.

Al these risk measurements are subsequenily analysed and monitorad, and the levels of risk assumed and the degree of
compliance with the [imile adborised by the BEVA's Standing Commitiee are reported to the various menaging and
poverning bodies of the Bank,

The average sensilivity of tha nel interesi margin lo 100-basis-poind changes in intaresl rales is ELIR -3 million.

The impact of 100-basis-paint changes on the Bank's economic value Is EUR 12.8 milkon. Economic capital at [ha 83.0%
parcontie for structural inlerest rale risk is EUR 2.2 milllion,

Az par of the measuremani process, the Bank established the assumplions rogarding the evolubion and behavicur of
certain ilems, such as those relaling lo producis with no explicll or contraciual malurity. These assumplions are based on
studies that eslimate fhe relationship between Ihe inlerest rates on these products and markel rates and enable specific
balances 1o be classified into irend-based balances, maturing af long tarm, and seasonal or volafila balances, wilth shori-
term residual maturly.

by CHEDIT RISK MANAGEMENT
Developmant of exposure and quality of credit risk

BCL's maximum expasure to credil risk amountad to EUR 12,706 million a1 31 December 2006, 2.6% lower than at 2005
yeal-gnd,

Credit risk with customars {T2% of the total exposure, including of-balance-sheel iemes) totalled EUR 2,155 million and
decreased by 1.2%, whereas balances drawable by third parties (7% of the total axposure) amounied fo EUR B0 millkon
and increased by 10.1%. Other axposure (loans and advances 1o cradil ingtihdions and other faed income securities)
represented 219 of the iotal and feil by 10.6%,

In 2008, lecan quality indicators stayed at levels similar to 20056, Doubliul batances fell by EUR 0.62 million, from EUR
41.28 million n 2005 o EUR 40.67 milion in 2006, and the non-performing loens rafio decreased by 1 basis paint {o
0. 445,

The allvwance for credit risk on lcans and advances o cusiomars decreased by EUR 2.4 million in 2005 (o EUR 35,88
miilion; impairment losses collactively assessed declined by EUR 1.6 million and Impalment losses ingividually assessed
&l by EUR 0.8 million. The non-performing loans coverage rallo in 2006 was 868%..

€] LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

Tho Bank aims to orderly replace ils exisling labiilies upon maiurily, whils ménimising variations in wholesale funding.
Accordingly, In 2008, the Bank look several actions almed at exlending and diversifying s funding sources,

Ewery month, the ALCO reviews liquidity gaps and cempliance wilh the established shori-lerm limils, and eneures thai
madium- and leng-term funding needs in the wholesale markets are compatiblo wilh the Bank's capacity to raisa funding
In the capital markeis, Additionally, the Bank is inciuded In the BEVA Group's liguidity risk measurement sysiems, and
followe the guidalines Iaid down by fhe Growp in this anea.

The most sallent evenl concerning whalesale funding was the fourth pub®s tarfiorial bond issve which, amouming o
EUR 1,000 million, malures at five years. The Bank also launched a EUR 1,000 milkon non-convertible bond issue
maturing al 18 months. These dala are based on the Informaticn Memorandum for the issuo of non-convertiblie oed-
income securilles on the Spanish domestic market, registered ai the Spanish Nabtonal Securilies Markel Commlssion
(CHMVY) and Ested on the AIAF fiwed-income markel.
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The range of guarantess accepled for Bank of Spain monetary policy fransactions was exdended and access o
privileged funding sources with new guaranies sbrucheres was meximised (EIB, Council of Europe, ...}

The Bank's maturity matrixes in euroa al 31 December 2008 are as follows:

Maturity mateix in euros, Sensitive asgots
Thousands of Eurgs
2008 On Within 1 1-3 3-12
Balance Boviacid Manth Manths Months 1-85Years | +8§Years
boney market 284,157 226 47T ar a0 - - -
Investment
seciiniles 2,403 207 2,067 18,713 110,328 481,061 1,760,848
Loans and
receivablas B8.271,783 . 181,735 436,653 1005279 | 27034684 3,085,052
Total | 10,938,837 226 877 220,872 485368 | 1,115807 3,274,515 5,648,500 |
Maturi ix | Sensitive liabilitk
—_ Thousands of Euros 1
2008 Cn Within 1 1-3 3-12
Balance | o and Month Months Months | 1-9Years | +5Yeare
Money markel 1,870,800 51086 | 1,810,843 . .
Customer depogils 232773 | 1000437 | 1307119 18,278 1.200 . .
Wiholesale funding 8,530,776 - - 127,147 1,283 584 4,749,705 370,341 |
__ Total | 10,729.418 | 1,061,203 | 3,126,882 145,426 | 1,284,784 | 4,745,705 370,341
GAPS 210,617 | (824,226) | (2,905,800 308,841 | (168,177) | (1,475,180) | 5276150

Thie breakdown of ihe balance of this heading In the balance sheets at 31 December 2005 and 2005 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
200& 2005
Balances with the Bank of Spain 223313 | 334,623
Total 223,373 334,623

7. Financial assets and liabllities held for trading

Tha breakdown of the balances of Ihese headings in fhe balance sheets al 31 December 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Theusands of Eurns |
P 2008 2005
Financial Financial
Financial Liabilities Flnancial Liabilities
Assots Hold Held for Assots Held Hald for
for Trading Trading | forTrading | Trading |
Trading derivatives 30,243 15,805 27574 | 21,180
Tatal 30,243 15,685 27,674 21,180




The breakdown, by type of ranaaction, of the balances of these headings In the balance sheets at 31 December 2008
and 2005 |5 as follows:

P Thousands of Euros
- _ﬂ Intarest Rata | Equity Price Total
Rigk Risk
Curranclas
OTS markels
Credit inetitutions [ 4,229 8,048 2 12,278
Forward (rensaciions 4,225 - - 4,24
Swaps - 18,255 - 18,255
Qplions - (11, 20e5) - {11,208)
Other seciors - 2,07 - 2,070
Swiags . 1,465 - 1,485
Opilons - G5 . i)
Tatal 4,728 10,118 - 14,348
Clagslfloation by rasidual
maturity of trading
darlvitives
Wilhin 1 mpalh - - - -
1 1e 3 marihs 4228 - = 4,225
A months 10 1 year . 1 -
1 1a 2 years . F # 2
2o 3 years = ¢ - &
310 4 yaars = = -
4 lo 5years = - - .
Afler & years = 10,118 - 10,118
Total 4,270 10,118 z 14,343 |

Of which:

Assat trading dorivatives 4,239 26,004 s 30,243

Liability trading derivalives {10) {1 g {15,805) |

21



Thousands of Euros
2005 _Immn
th:::f mhmm Inm;illrin.“ Total
Currenclas
OTC markets
Cradit inatitutions (T 4204 5,374 4,159 T,113
Farward lransaciions {24200 - . (2 420)
Swaps - 8,280 - B,2a0
Ciplions - {2908} 4,159 1,253
Other eeciors - 3,440 {4,189) k)
Swaps - 541 - 41
Opllons . 2,809 {4,139) {1,280}
Total (2,420 8,414 . 5,394
Claszificatlon by resldual
maturity of trading
Drorivativies
WiEhin 1 manth (24200 - . (2420
1 o 3 montha - - - -
3 manlhs o 1 yaur - - - -
1402 yedrs - - . -
2o 3 years - . u
3 fo 4 years - (13 . {13
4 to & years - . . o
ARer 5 years - B.E2T - 8,827
Tatal (2200 8,814 = 6,354
whizh:
Axaet trading declvatives = 29,819 5,055 27,574
Ligbllity trading denvatives; {2.420) {13,105} {5,655} {21,180}
8. Availabla- a

The detad, by type of transaction, of the balance of this heading in the balance sheats at 31 December 2005 and 2005, is

as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2006 2008
Debt instrumanis
Spanish government debt securilies B23, M2 214,830
Foreign government debt securilies 1,135,008 A7T0.308
Issued by credit institutions 117,122 58,215
Residant 23,781 18,281
Mon-resident 63,341 38,924
Ciher fived-income instrumanis 72,440 BR80T 7
Resbdent (7} 498,031 623,478
Hon-rasidant T4.418 75,439
Waleakon adpusimanis [**) 171,034 304 888
Total 2,619,323 2,847,165
{*) Inchudes assel-backed bords amaunting to EUR 462,481 thousand end EUR 556, 183 thousand,

raspecivaby (Habs 9.3).

(**] Tha valualion sdjusirmanis shoyn above relaba o hedging detvatives assecinbed with
availableJor-sale financial assels.

In 2006 and 2005, €2.321 thousand and €10,224 thousands, respeclively, were debited to Valuation Adwsimenis and
recordad under Galing/Losses on Financial Asseds and Liabdities in the income statements for 2006 and 2005,
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The delail, by geographical area, of the debl securilles and
heading, disregarding impairmant losses, s as follows:

-

olher equily Instrumenis incluged under this

Thousands of Euras

2006 2005
Europe 2,352,139 2444 TET
Unitad States 38,226 34,013
Resi of ihe worid &7.924 B3 467
Total 2,448,285 2,542,267

As of December 31, 2006 the losses nel from tax recognised in equity from 1The heading “Debl seciwilies” under
Avallable-for-sale financial assels amounted to €6,877 thousand, (€3,527 thousand gaina, as of December 31, 2005)

9. Loans and receivables
5.1. Breakdown

The detall, by type of financial insirumant, of the balance of this heading in the balance shests a1 31 December 2008 and
2005, is as follows:

Thousande of Euras
- Lot ol 2006 2005

Loans and advances to cradil instilulicns 41,202 120,048
Loans and advances 1o cuslomens 8459237 B.685.812
OHher financial assets 43z 7
Gross total 8,500,971 B.B16,B67

Less: Impalrment losses {35,880} (38,243}
Net total 8,465,081 8,778,624

8.2, Loans and advances to credit instilutions

The detall, by type of inandlal nsirument, of the balance of this heading In the balance sheets al 31 Decembear 2008 and

2005, iz as follows:

Thousands of Eurcs
2008 2005
Tima deposits 40,754 129,268
Oher accounts ! aond as57
Gross total | 41,088 129,615
Valuation adjustments {*) 114 33
Met total 41,202 128,948

{*} Tha waluation adjusimanis shown above refabe b e accrual of ienest and simias inocere,
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8.3, Loans and advances to customers

'Il'hﬂ d'iﬂnl"ﬂ. by Ioan lypo and status, of the balance of this heading in the balance sheets al 31 Decembar 2006 and 2005,
E B85 GG

Thousands of Euros

2008 2005
Caommercial credit 16,840 17,119
Securad loang ;. 8,104
Cradit acoounts 877,348 748,156
Dther loans 7,575,248 7,784,972
Recolvable on demand and ciher 86,072 21,810
Impalred assels 40,668 40,669
Gross total 8,404,174 B,599,830
{ Valuation adjustments (*) 18,183 48,830
Met total B.423,367 B, 648,669

i Thnwmm.um#ﬁmmmm“muw of intesesd apd similar incom, |o fea

s Snfrainsien value

R usiments for assal impainmant o loans end sdvancas ko cmlcmers.

I m'ere-hpdgo renssckion veloa adjusiments and bo @8 Wi

The breakdown, by borrower seclor, of the balance of this heading at 31 December 2008 and 2005, disregarding
valualion adjusiments, is as follows;

2008 Thousands of Euros
Residents [Non-Residonts Total

Public sacior 7.814,708 - T.514, 708

Agriculture 278 . 278
Manufaciuring 73 . T3
Real estabe and construction 20,811 - 20,811
Trade and fnanoe G0 - 360
Loans lo indhidusls 1,182 - 1.182
Other 333,642 134,220 333,542
Tatal 8,270,854 124,220 8,405,174

“;_' o Thousands of Euros
Resldents  |[Non-Residents|  Total

Public secior 7,932,600 - 7.932 809

Agricullure a0s - a08
Manufaciuring 95 - a5
Real estate and construction 33,408 - 33408
Trade and finance 401 - 401
Loans to individuals 1.788 . 1,768
Ciher 485,363 145,860 631,223
Tatal B, 463,970 145,860 8,559 830




The detail, by geographical area, of this heading at 31 Decembar 2006 and 2006 is a5 follows:

Thousands of Euros

0086 2005
Europe 8,270,054 B 453 870
United States 134,220 145 880
Tedal 8405174 8,589,830

At 21 December 2008 and 2005, there were no lbans securitisad through securitisation spedal purpose vehicles fhat
could not be deracognised.

However, in 2000 the Bank securifised loans In lne Loans and Advances o Customers portlolio which wese
derecopnised since the requirements for derecognilion wera mel (MNobte 2-). Al 31 December 2006 and 2005, the
gecuriized [oans amounting fo EUR 440,827 thougand and EUR 558,574 thousand, respectively, were derecognised

{Mote 20).

Al 31 Decambor 2008 and 2005, the balance of assel-backed bonds acquired in full by the Bank amounted to ELIR
452 481 thousand and EUR 538,183 thousand, respectvely, and are included under “Available-for-Sale Financal

Assets” (Nole B),

9.4. Impaired assets and impairment lossas

The changes in 2006 and 2005 in "Loans and Advances to Customers — Impaired Assets” were as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2008 2005 |
Balance at the beginning of the year 40,689 1,288
BNgEs = 33
eversals ( (B52)
lanca at the end of the year 40,668 ~ AD.G6S

The changes in the balance of the impairment losses on “Loans and Receivables” were as

folkows.

Thousands of Euros
2008 2008
Balance at the baginning of the yaar 38,243 40,TEB
increase in impairment losses charged to income a0 30
Dacreasa in impairmont losses crediled 1o income 2,383 {2.643)
Balance at the end of tha year 35,880 38,243
Of which:
Indhiidually assessed 33,113 33,838
Collectively asseased 2,67 4,307
| Of which:
By assel goverod:
Loang and advances o customers 25,680 38,243
35 880 38,243
Of which:
By geographical location of risk:
Eurgpe 34,873 a7 148
United Stales 1,007 1,084

&1 31 December 2006 and 20045, thare wara no mooveres of writa-off assels.
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Al 21 December 2008 and 2005, the aconeed inferest on Impaired assets amounted to EUR 114 303 thousand and ELR

111,808 thousand, respeciivaly, although it was nol recognisad in the related incomea stalemsants because there were
doubts &% 1o its collaclibiliy.

10. He

ing derivatives {assets and liabilities

The detall of the fair value of the inlerest rale risk hedging dervalives outslanding recognisad in the Bank's balance
sheets al 31 Decermber 2006 and 2005 I as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2008 2006
OTC markets
Credit institutions [178,77E) {206, 623)
Fair value micro-hedges (178,778) (206 823}
Other sactors 3,115 166
Fair valua micro-haedges 31156 168
Total [173.663) (206,457}
Of whiche

Assat hedging derivalives 164,407 221,320
Liability hedging derivatives {338,070) (427,777}

The nglional andior confraciual amounts of the confracts anlered info do not raflect the actual sk assumed by the Bank,
gincs fhe net posilion in hess finandal instrumenis is the resull of offsetting andior combining ham,

11. Investmen

11.1. Investments In agsoctatos

Ab 31 Decamber 2005 this balance sheel item includes the Bank's investment in the share capilal of TRIBUGEST

GESTION

relationship with the Bank.

Raelevant information on theee inmvastmants al 31 Decamber 2006 is as follows:

DE TRIBUTOS, 5.A., an unlisted company thal does not conslilute a decision-making unil but has a lasting

{*} Unaudiied profit &l fhat daba.

Farceniags of Ownarship
Tirdguy Thousands of Euros
Company Location | Buslness Actlvity R PR (ST (e — Fm:::rn::hl
indieact | Tolsl | \mount | 31208 | JaMz0s | 3trans .
| 14112108 |*)
T []
Tribuges! Gesllan de Aoy s8rvicos 10
Tributon, S0 Madad |0 : 36 | Barw |dooem| sse | aveza | azase | 1ssee {14,508

The defall by cumrency and listing status, of the balance of this heading in fthe accompanyiig balance sheeds, s as

folbows,

Thousands of Euros
2006 2005
By currency:
In auros 5,762 762 |
By listing status:
Lnfigted 5,782 TE2
Lesa-
Impairment losses {5,426) %
Total 336 T2

Tha changes in e batance of this ikem in 2006 and 2005, disreganding impairmean losses, weare as follows:



Thousands of Euros

20086 2008
Balance at tho beginning of the year TEZ 62
Capltal Increases and purchases 5,000 -
Balance at the end of the year 5,762 762

On 21 December 2006, (he Bank coniibuted EUR 5000 thousand for the subscription of G666 shares in the capital
increase of Tribugest Gestitn de Trbulos, 5.A.

11.2. Investmenis in subsidiaries

The balance of this item in the accompanying balanco sheels incledes he camying amounis of the shares of BEVA
Group companias,

Relevant infarmafion on these invesimants al 31 Decemibar 2006 is as lallows:

"mm‘fmﬂ'"_""" Thousands of Euras
Loss for |
Company Locallon | Huslnass Activity — 1@ Vear
ng | Asgeks | Linkdilfes Egwil
Direct | Padivect | Total | oont | 39mzms | 31nans | 3 ot
ItM20E
— 1
& Indgrnatlgnal Finanes, Grang Financsal sprdcas I - 100 ™ 164,568 iA0 37 P T2 T
BECL Pertielpaciones, SL. Madiid | Holifing coarguany 0% - 100% 1,560 1,668 150l {343
Bsonacal, 5.4 Madrid | Sefvices W - THI% a2 az 43 (11)

{7 The share capital of his company is LISD 100, which coincidfes with s camyng amawnt.
{**) Provisional loss pending autharisalion fgr issua by the refovant governing bodies, and unauvdibed at ihat dale.

The delail, by currency and kisting slalus, of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balance shewms, s as

Tollows:

Thousands of Euros
2006 2006
By currency:
In euros 2,218 226
Total 2216 2,316
By listing status:
Linfisted 218 2218
Less-
Impalrment lcsses (B18) {265
Total 1,587 1,851

The changes in the balance of this item in 2008 and 2008, disregarding Impairment losses, were as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2008 2006
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,216 1,006
Capital incresses and puichases . 25
Contribaions to offset losses - 12711
Other - {66}
Balance at the end of the year 2,216 2,216

Following is a summary of The most significant iransacfions undertaken n 2005

Cn 16 May 2005, the Bank made a EUR 1,271 thousand contribution to offset losses at BCL Parlicipacionas, S.L

Alga, the Bank subscribed i full the EUR 26 thousand capital increase carrled out at Giobal Funding M.V, Subsagqusntly,
in Decamber 2005, the Bank liguidaled this company wilh no effect on the income statement.
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11.3. Impairment losses

The changes in impairment losses on investmants In 20068 and 2005 were as Tolkows:

Thousands of Euros

20086 2005
Balance at the beginning of tha year 265 -
Mat charges for the year 5,780 -
! Impairment losses charged to income 6,008 350
impairment losses reversed (228) -
Amount used - {85)
Balance at the end of the year 6,045 265

12, Tangible assats

The defad, by class of assel, of the changes in 2006 and 2005 in this heading in tha balance sheels, Is as follows:

Thousands of Eurgs
2006 For Own Usa | 8
Furnitura nvestme Total
'E‘:'I"i':.:'; Fixtures and | Property
Mher
Revaluad cost-
Balances al 1 January 2008 &,081 6,281 16,847 32,219
Addilinns - 12 . 12
Disposals - - - -
Balances at 31 Decembar 2008 5081 | 6,305 | 18,847 32,23
Accumulated depraciation-
Balances al 1 Jaruary 2006 1,087 2,680 1,888 5,823
Additions 145 ans 2m 721
Disposals - - - -
Balances at 31 December 2006 1,202 3,185 2,157 544
Impairmont los&as.
Balances at 1 January 2006 - | - = i
Balances at 31 Docoember 2008 z = = o
Mat tanglble assots-
Balances at 1 January 2006 B024 3411 14,960 26,395
Balances at 31 Decamber 2006 T.ATS 3,118 14,680 25,687




Thousands of Euros
For Own Use
2005 Investment |  Total
Furniture,
Land and Fhxtures and Proparty
Bulldings Other

Rovalued cost-

Balances at 1 January 2005 9,081 6,281 16,846 32,218
Aditions - 8 - 3
 Disposals : (8} . (8]
Balances at 31 Decembar 2005 9,081 B2 16,846 32,218
Accumulated deprecialion-

Balancoes at 1 January 2005 B2 2,544 1,617 5,073
Aditions 145 J44 289 758
| Disposals - (&) . {8}
Balances at 31 Dacomber 2006 1,067 2,880 1,886 5,823
Impairment losses-

Balances at 1 January 2005 = - - -
Balancos at 31 December 20085 - - - -
Kot tangible assets- |
Balances at 1 January 2005 8,189 3,747 15,229 27,145
| Balancos at 31 December 2005 8,024 3,411 14,860 16,395

&i 31 December 2008 amd 2005, no net Impakmment losses on tangible assels had boon charged fo (he incomo

stalement,

1

ents and accrued Income and

rred income

The detall of the balances of these headings in the balance sheats o 31 December 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Assots -
Prepayments
Accrued Income

Liabilities -
Accrued expanses

Thousands of Euros |

- 2006 2005 ]
1 1
Bl BN 168
Total 308 170
1,362 1,887
Todal 1,362 1.987
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14. Other assets and liabilities

The detail of the balances of ihese headings in the balance sheets at 31 December 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2008 2005
Other assets -
Tranzactons in fransit (%) 4,840 373
Oliver 46
Taolal 4,940 419
Liahilities
Transactions in transkt 223 -
Total 223 -

(") inzludes bxed-incomes Coupons recaivable end the reversal of a payment amouniing o EUR & milipn

15. Financial liabilities at amorlised cost
The braakdown of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balance sheets is as follows:
Thousands of Euros
= 3 2008 2005
Depasits from cantral banks 1,800,738 1,800,381
Deposits from credil inslifullons 575, 206 1,158,881
Customer deposils 2,506,539 2,321,280
Dabit cenlficales (including bonds) 5,985,217 8,081,088
Ciner financial liabifilies 41,881 35,027
Total 10,893,681 11,477,677

15.1. Deposits from central banks

The breakdown of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balance sheels is as Tollows:

Thougands of Euros
- 2006 2005
Bank of Spain
Credit account drawdowns 1,800,00 1,800,000
Gross Tolal 1,800,000 1,900,000
Valuation adjustmenis [*) Tah 381
Mot Total 1,800,738 1,800,381

("} Includes acciuals.

At 31 December 2006 and 2005, the financing limil assigned to the Bank by the Bank of Spain and ofher central banks
was EUR 2,749,937 thousand and EUR 3,145,331 thousand, respectively, of which EUR 1,200,000 thousand and EUR
1,500,000 thousand had bean drawn down
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16.2. Deposits from credit institutions

Thousands of Euros

2008 2005
Time deposits 556,252 1,154,881
Repurchase agreaments 18,343 -
Dher accounts 2141 2,165
Gross Total 877,738 1,157,126
Valuation adjustments {7} 1,470 2,755
! Mot Total 579,206 1,139,881

("Hinchudes accruals,

The balance of thiz heading in the balance sheel ralates in full fo lranzactions carried cut in Eurcpe.

15.3. Customer deposits

The breakdown, by type of ansaction, of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balance shosts, s as follows:

Thousands of Eurgs
2008 2005
Public sector
Spanich 2,239,246 1,888,000
2,239,248 1,963,995
Othar residont sactors
Currant accoUms 34,837 72 540
Tima deposits 8670 23
43,507 72,572
Mon-residents
Time deposils 147,187 185,082
147,187 185,082
Valustion adjusiments (*) 76,589 83,636
Met Total | 2,508 539 2,321,288
O wich:
In Buros 2,508,639 2321280

The breakdown, by type of iransaction, of ihe balanca of (his haading in the accompanying balancs sheets, is as follows:

i*] The valuation adjrsiments shown above retale o the accrual of inferest and similar imcome and &
valuabian adjustiments o hedging darivelives assockated wilh customar deposits,

Thie balance of "Customer Deposils - Non-Residanis — Time Deposits” in the balance sheats, at 31 Decembar 2006 and
2005, includes deposils amounting io EUR 147 187 thousand and EUR 185,082 thousand, respachively, taken from BCL
International Finance Lid., a company wholly cwned by the Bank (Note 11-2), which engages in the raising of funds in
ihe infernational markets for subsequent lending to the Bank. Al 31 Docamber 2008 and 2005, the culstanding balance
of the Euro Medium Term Mole Programme amounted to EUR 147,197 thousand and EUR 185,082 thousand,

respaciively. The issues oulstanding under this programme are unconditionally and Irrevocably guaranteed by the Bank
and wene launched n vantous currencles, at impScit and explicit fixed and Soating interest rates.

The defai, by geographical area, of the heading o1 31 December 2006 and 2005 is as tallows:

i Thousands of Euros
R E:F'“n:';'g wit"ﬁ".“;.f'.ﬁ Total
Maturity
Europe 2127188 166,655 2,282,763
Fest of the world = 147,187 147 167
Total 2127198 302,752 | 2,420,060 |
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15.4. Debt certificates (including bonds)

The breakdovn of the balance of this heading in the accompanying balanca sheets iz as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2006 2005
Bonds and debantures outstanding:
Other non-convedible seourities 5,880,028 | 58995645
Grogs total | 5,880,028 | 5808,545
Valuation miush‘nmu ﬁ ?@ 161,554
j Mot total | 5,965,217 | 6,061,089

{*} Includes accruals, issue cosls and valualion adjiusimants for micro-hedging rensaclions,

The detail, by currency and interest rate, of the balance of this heading in the sccompanying balance sheesis,

disregarding valualion adjusimants, is as follows:

|=—==

retes

rates

Thausands of Euros
2006 2005
In suros
Han-conwertinle bonds and territoral bonds at floating
1,420,083 2,420 583
kon-comerlible bonds and territoral Bonds al fived
4.470,845 3,478,082
Total 5,600,828 5,888 545

Tha item "Mon-Convertible Bonds and Territorial Bornds ai Floaking Rates” includes:

EUR 1,000,000 thowsand lssee made inlannoeary 2008 and maturing in July 2007, with nominal interast rate of

three month Eurdbvor plus 2 basis poinis,

Isgsue subscribed exclusively by the Ewropean Investment Bank as secuarity for the financing facilities arranged by
the Bank with it One issue was made in July 2004 and amounted to EUR 150,000 fhousand and two issues
were launched in Seplember 2004, amounbng lo EUR 120,000 thousand and EUR 149832 thousand,
regpectvely, These issues malurs in March 2016, September 20110 and Septamber 2013, respeclively, and bear
Intarest thai will ba the lower of tha EIB rale and 3-month EURIBOR plus 13 basis poins.

The item "Mon-Convertible Bonds and Territarial Bonds at Fieed Rates” includas:

- EUR 1,500,000 thousand issue of terrilonal bonds made by the Bank in April 2003, which bear fixed annual interesl

of 3.75% unkil their final redempion in Apnil 2010,

ELFR 1,000,000 hewsand |ssue of lerritoral bonds made by e Bank in June 2004, which bear fixed annual inlerest

of 3.75% unfil thair final redempiion in June 2009,

- EUR 1,000,000 thousand issue of teritorial bonds made by the Bank in March 2005, which bear flxed annual

irterest of 2. 75% unbil thelr final redemption In March 2008,

= EUR 1,000,000 thousand isswe made by fhe Bank in Cclober 2008, which bear fioed annual interest of 3.76% until

their final redampfion in March 2011.

- Beveral issues with Bnal malurily in 2012, all bearnng inbarest al 4%,
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16. Provi

The detall of the balance of this heading in the balance sheels at 31 Decembor 2006 and 2005 s as follows:

Thousands of Euros

Lid 2 L= 2008 2005
Provisions for penslons and simlar ot¥igations 27,348 20,357
[Provisions for contingent liabilities and commitmeants 198 120
Ciher provisicne 2 488 1,535
Total 28 550 34,012

The changes in 2008 and 20035 in 1he balances of this [bam in fhe accormpanying balance sheets were as follows:

Thousands of Euros
Provisions for | Provisions for
Penglong and | Conlingent Othar
Similar Liabilitles and | Provisions
Obligations | Commitments
Balances al the baginning of 2005 32,548 120 1,535
HAdd-
Addifions charged o income for the
year 2.167 " -
Loss-
Reversalks = - -
Paymments fo sarly relirees (Nate 17) {4,843) . :
Amount wged (603) 5 .
Ofher changes . 5 .
Balances at the end of 2005 20,357 120 1,535
Ald-
Addilions charged 1o incoma for the
year 3,138 16 831
Less-
Paymenis lo early refirees (Mole 17) {4,557} - -
Amount used (68} % 1
Othor gchanges - = e
Balances at the end of 2005 27,348 138 TM4E6

The addilions 0 "Provisions for Pensions and Siméiar Obligallons” charged Io income are recognised under "Interast
Expenze and Similar Charges®, “Personnal Expentes®, and "Provisions (Mal)® in the 2006 income stalement and
amounted o EUR 792 thousand, EUR 1 thousand and EUR 2,344 thousand, respectively (EUR 896 thousand, EUR 1
thousand and EUR 1,280 thousand, respectively, in 2008) (Mofes 17},

Also, the additions fo and reversals of “Provisions for Confingenl Liabities and Commilments® ara racognised under
"Provisions (Nef)” in ihe income sialements,

Al leasl, the addilions o "Provisions-Other provisions” charge o vcome are recognised under "Intevesl expense and
similar charges-Other charges™ in the 2008 income state and amount 1o EUR 831 thousand. In 2005 thera ware no
changog,

17. Commitments whith personnel
17.1 Post-omployment benefits:

Following |a a descriplion of the maost significan! accounting criteria and the salient data relaling 1o the postemployment
banefil commilmants of the Bank in Spain, These commilments includa -

- Ihe underiaking 1o suppiement the public social securily banefits in the event of refirement, permanenidisability or
doath.
- Lompensalion and indemnities payable; and confribulions to employes welifare aystams for early retineas,
- post-amploymean! welfare benaofits.
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17.1.1 Public social security system benefit supplament

In accordance with the provisions of tha former employee welfare regulations, the Bank makes payments 1o cenain
ratirad employass, or fo Iheir beneficlary rightholders, to supplemant the sodal securily benofits for retiremant,
permaneni disability, death of spouzge or desth of parent.

Ag régards current employees, under the collecive labour agreement in force, Spanish banks are requirad to supplement
the social secwily benefits regeived by their employees or thelr beneficiary rightholders, in the ovent of relirement
{except for those hired after 8 March 1880), permanent disability, death of spouse or death of parent. The first of these
commitimenis does not apply to any Bank employees who were hired before 8 March 1930, since under the Labour
Agreement on Inclusion in the Banking Industry Collective Agreement enlered into in February 1089, the Bank's
employeas maintain only the retiremeant rights fo which they wera eniitled previousty, that is, the defined contibution
pension plan governed by the Bank's 18th Collective Agreemeni and by the Pension Plan Regulations.

Algo, the Bank's omployes welfare syatem improves the terms and conditions of the collective labour agreement for the
benking industry and recognises defined contribution obligations in the event of refirement for employees hired on or
after 8 March 1880,

The Bank externalised all its obligations to current and relired employees pursuan! to Royal Decree 1688/1999 of 18
Cctober, which were instrumented in pension plans (defined condribution obligations) and insurance coniracts with BEWVA
Seguros, 5.A. da Seguros y Reaseguros, which is 99.93% owned by the Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group
{definod benofit obligations).

Defingd contribulion _obligations: the cumend contribulions made by Ihe Bank for defined conirbullon retirenent
obfigations covering all current employees, which are recognised with a charge to “Personnel Expenses - Contribulions
tz Pension Plans® in the accompanying income stalernents, amounted o EUR 41 thousand in 2008 and EUR 43
thousand In 2005 (Note 38),

Defined banefil obligalions; The Bank has defined benefit obligations for parmanent disabilily and death of current
employees and carly relirees and for relirement and death of certain relired employass.

The present values of the vested chligations are guaniified on a case-by-case basls, The valualion method used for
culrent employess is the projected unif credit mathod, which views each year of service as giving rise to an additional
unit of benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately, The acluarial assumplions used in guanlifing thess
obligations are unbiased and mulually compalible and comply with Bank of Spain Circular 412004, Specifically, the most
signifcant actuarial assumptions used in 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Mortality tables: PERMIF 2000 P

Discount rate: 4% (cumulative annualllAA corparate bond curve

Consumer price index: 1.5% (cumulalive annual)

Salary growth rate: al least 2.5% (cumulative annual); depending on employes group
Foliroment ages: thoae relafing lo the earllest dates al which the emplopess ara entified 1o retire,

o & & & @

The defined beneft cbligalions at 31 December 2006 and 20056 were as Tollows:

[ Thousands of Euros
2006 2005
Pension obligations o retired employess 5644 B,071
Pension conlingencies in respect of curmeni
employess aog 50
6.343 8,931
Frinding at the end of cach year:
Ingurance conlracia wilh related insurance
campanies 8,343 B 531
B,343 6,931

The current contributions made by the Bank for defined conlribution relirement obligations were recognised with a charge
to "Personnel Expenses - Contributions io Pension Plans® in the accompanying income statements and amounted 1o
EUR B thousand in 2008 and EUR 1 thousand in 2005,

17.1,2, Early retirements
The ebligations to early relireas include the compensation and indemnilies and conributions 1o exlemal pension funds

payable during the period of early retirarmant. The obligations retating to this group of amployeas after they have reached
the age of effeclive relirament are included in the amployes wellare system.
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In 2008 and 2005, the Bank cNered cartain employees the possibllily of taking early refirement before reaching the age
slipulated in the colleciive labour agreement in force. This offer was accepted by 5 employees in 2006 (2005 4
employses). The total cost of these agreements amounted to EUR 2,473 thousand in 2008 (2005: EUR 1,476 thousand),
and the relaled provisions were recognised with a charge lo "Provisions (Net)” in the accompanying income statements.

The present values of the vested obligations are quantifiod on a case-by-case basis. The acluarial assumplions used In
quantifying ihess obligations are unbissed and mutually compaliblo and comply with Bank of Spain Ciroular 472004,
Spacifically, the most signilicant acluanial assumpliona used In 2008 and 2005 wara as follows:

Moriality tables: PERMF 2000 P

Dizcount rate: 4% (cumslative annualy’A8 corporate bond curde

Consumer price indec: 1.5% (cumulative annual)

Refirement ages: those agreed upon contractually for each individual emplovee, relating to the earliest dales ai
which the employees are entifled lo rofirg

L

The changes in 2008 and 2005 in the present value of the vested obligation for commiliments to eary relirees were as
follows:

Thousands of Euros
s E 2006 | 2008 |
Fresent acltuarial value at the beginning of 22 258 25.015
the year
+ lntarast coat Tas a0
+ Early relirmments in the year 2473 1,476
- Paymenis made {4,452} (4.843)
Oitros movimignios (1} E
+- Actuarial logses (gains) (187} (283} |
Prosant actuarlal value at the end of 20,883 22,258
the year
Funding at the end of each yaar:
infemal provisions 20,863 22 255
20,863 22,285

17.1.3. Post-employmont welfare bensfits

The Bank has welfare benefil abligations the effecis of which extend beyond the relirement of the employees enfitied 1o
the benefits. These obligations include cerain current omployess and refirees, depending upon the employes group to
which they balong.

The preseni values of the vested obligations for post-employment welfare benefils are quantified on a case-by.case
basis. The valuation method used for current employeas is the projected unit credit method, The actuarial assumptions
used in quantifying these obligations are unblased and mulually compafible and camply with Bank of Spain Circular
42004, Specilicadly, the most significant actuarial assumptions used in 2005 and 2004 wera a3 follows:

Mortality tables: PERMIF 2000 P

Discount rafe: 4% {cumudative annualyis, corporala bond cunse

Consurmner prica index: 1,5% (cumulative anmual)

Retiremant ages: those relating to the earfieat dates al which the employees are entitled io retive

The detsil of thase obligalions al 31 Decomber 2008 and 2005 is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2008 2005
Post-employment welfare benafil obtigabians o
telired amployess 118 138
Vested post-employment welfare banefil
contingencies in respac! of current employeas 24 a3
142 171
Funding at the ond of each year:
Interrad provisions [Mote 18) 142 i
142 1™
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Tho changes in 2006 and 2005 in the proseni valus of the vasted obligafion for post-employment welfare benefil
abligations were as follmys;

Thousands of Euros
2008 2005
[ Present actuarial value at the beginning of the year 1M 160
+ Interast cost ¥ &
+ hormal cost for the year 2 1
- Paymentas made {106) {83}
+ Otros movimienos L -
+- Actuartal losses (gaing) &7 B7 |
Presant actuarial value at the end of the year 142 1m

17.1.4, Bummary

Following is a summary of the charges recorded in the 2008 and 2005 incoma statemants for the post-employmen
banahil obigalions:

Thousands of Euros
> 2008 2005

Interest expense and similar charges:
Intaresi cost of pension funds Ta2 Bea
Personnesl expenges:
Wedlara benafils 1 1
Confributions to pension funds 47 44
Provisions (nel):
Transfers lo provisions for pensions and similar

obligations

Provisions for pensions (1309 (2 1E)

Early refiremant 2473 1476

| 3,183 2,201

Al 31 Decamber 2006 and 2005 thers wora no wniunded actuarial gains or ksses ansing from differences babween tha
aciuasial assumplions and whal had aciually occumed or, where appropriate, from the effects of changes in the actuarial
assumplions used,

17.2. Other commitments to employeos:
17.2.4. Remuneration in Kind

The Bank is oblged to defver parfially or fully subsidised goods and services undor the Banking Industry Collechve
Labour Agreement andfor The relaled corporate agresments, The most significant employes weifare benefits, in terms of
the lype of compensation and the event giving rise fo the commitment, are loans to employass, life insurance, and study
granls. The scope of application of these employee welfare bensfils varies on the basis of the employee group. The
current employes welfare benefits are accrued and sellled on a yearly basks, and no provision & reguired in this
connaclion.

The total cost of Ihe wealfare benefiis delivered by the Bank 1o employess amouniad to EUR 92 and 89 thousand, in 2006
ang 2008, and were recognized with a charge 1o "Personasl expenses olher parsonnal expenses” in the accompanying
income statements.

18. Changes in equity
The changes in equily in the 2006 and 2005 ware as follows:

Thousands of Euros =
2008 Share Dther Equity| Treasury Dlvidanda \faluwunJ _
[ _Capital | Ressrves '} Insiruments | Shares Prodik Distribuled Adjustmen Takal
Balances at 31 [ [ 1
Docomber 2005 161,043 85,244 - - 50,383 - 3,537 | 300,207
Revalusilon gains flosses) - = - - (17.284),  (17.281)
Tranafers Lo income
statemeni - = . a
Income & - - 6877 6,877
Prafit far Ihe year - - A BE2 - 40 833
Distribution of profit . . (50,383} -] (50,393
Balancos at
51 December 2006 151,043 95,244 - . 40,922 -l earn|  2m0332

[*IThe balarcs of Rossrves includes fhe amounts reporied under “Reserves” and “Share Promium® in ihe accompenying batance sheats,



Thousands of Euros
2005 Share Other Equity| Treasury Dividands Lﬁ;}:mﬂml
Capital | Reservos (*] | setruments | Shares Prafit Distributed ustmaon Tolal

Balances al 31

Dogember 2004 151,043 24,829 - 82127 11,438 315,634
Revalualion gaing (losses) - . - - - {10, 564) [10,564)
Transfers bo incoma
siatermen| - - - . s {1,602) {1,602)
Incame tax - . - - - 4 58 4,356
Profil far the yasr - . = 60,353 - - L ek
Cistiuiion of profil - 315 - (82,127} . - {51,812)
Balances af
| 31 December 2006 | 151,043 5,244 5 50,363 3,627 300,207

{"} The balanee of Resenves includes the amounts reporled under *Resorves” and “Share Promium® in the sccompanying balance sheeds

13. Share capital

At 31 December 2008 and 2005, e Bank's share capital amounied to EUR 151,042 933 44 and consisled of
25,131,844 fully subscribed and paid registered shares of EUR 6.07 par value each.

There wara no changea in sharae capital in 2006,

Ab 3 Decambar 2008, the detail of the Bank's sharehalder structure was as follows:

% of Chwnorship |
Banco BHbao Vizeaya Arganlaria, 5.4 BEEDAE
Cidessa Uno, 5L, DLon04
100

2 har

The balance of this heading in the balance sheel at 31 December 2008 and 20056 amounted o EUR 10,662 thousand.
The congolidaled Spanish Companies Law expressly parmita the use of the share premiumn balance 1o increase capital
and establishes no specific restriclions as to its use.

21. Reservas

The breakdown of the balance of this heading in ihe accompanying balance sheals is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
20086 20085
Restrictad régeres:
Legal reserve 30,200 30,209
Rostricied resorve for redenomination of capilal in euros 3 3
Unrastricled rezenyes:
Woluntary and other reserves 54,370 54,370
Total 64,582 B4, 502
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21.1. Logal reserve

Under the consclidated Companies Law, Spanish enfilles must Iransfer 10% of nel profit for each year to the legal
reserve, These ransfers must be made undil the balance of this reserve reaches 20% of the share capital, a limit which
had bean reached by the Bank at 31 December 2006, The lagal reserve can be used to Increase share capital provided
tivat lhe remaining reserve balance does not fall babkow 10% of the increased share capital amount,

Except ae mentioned above, unlil the legal raserve exceads 20% of capilal, It can only be used lo offsel losses, provided
thal sufficient other reserves ane nol available for this purposs.

22, Tax mattars

The Bank filed Individual corporation tax returns for the years ended 31 December 2001 and 2000. However, on 10
January 2001, Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, 5.A. acquired the remaining 40% of the Bank's capital, thereby
increasing its holding in ihe Bank fo 100%. Accordingly, from 2002 onwards, the Bank and its subsidiaries have filed
consolidated tax relurns as companies in the Group of which the Parent is Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, 5.4, On 30
December 2002, the Bank made the relevant nofification to the Ministry of Economy and Finance to extend Its taxation
under the consoltdated taxalion regima indefinitaly, in accordance with current legislalion.

The balance of “Tax Liabiliies™ in the accompanying balance sheets includes the liability for the various laxes applicabla
to the Bank, Including corporafion tax on the prodit for the year net of the corporation tax wilhivoldings and prepayments
made in each pariod. If the provision for corporation tax on proft for the year, less corporation tax withholdings and
prepayments made and tax refundabde from prior years gives a net balance receivable by the Bank, it Is inchuded under
“Tax Assafs” on the asset side of the accompanying balance shoots.

The reconciliation of the corporation tax expense resulling from the application of the slandard tax rale o the corporation
fax expanss recognised is as folows:

Thousands of Euros
2006 2005
| Corporation tax at 35% 23,583 27,134
Efiect of permanent differences and olher 2,911 35
Adjustment 1o prior years' corporation tax expense (36 | [35)
Corporation fax expenge i Eﬂ-.lﬂf g_?.134

The Bank has 2001 and subsequent years open for review by the tax inspection authorities for the main taxes applicable
fo it

Corporalion tax and the other taxes relafing to 108, 1802, 1933 and 1894 were regularised following acceplancs in
1897 of ihe fax assessments issued by fhe fax authorilies as a rasull of the review performed by them. For the confested
lax assessments, a specific provision of EUR BB6 thousand (Mote 16), representing 100% of their amount, was recorded
and included under "Other Provigions — Provisions™ in the accompanying balance ghesls.

Algo, in 2002 lax assossments ware issuad for 19856 and 1967 when the Bank filed consolidated tax relurns as part of the
former Argentara Group. For lhe conlesied tax assessmonls, once the fiming nature of some of the assessmenis had
been faken info accouni, and In accordance with the accounting principle of predence, a provision of EUR 1,770
thousand (Mote 16} was recorded at 2006 year-end in Ihe eccompanying financial stalerments for the amounis which
imight arise from thess assassments .

On 27 February 2006 the Bank was notifled of the inflialion of a tax audit by the lax authorilies of the various texes to
winch s business acltivily is subject and for which the statute of fimitalions pericd has not oxpired ai that date, basically,
corporation tax, value added tax, personal income 1ax or corporafion tex withholdings and the obligation to declare
transaciions with fhird parties relaling o 2001, 2002 and 2003,

In vigw of the varying interprefations which can be made of the tax regulations, 1he oulcoma af any fulure fax audils of
the open years might give rise to certain conlingen fax liabdities that cannot be objectively quantified. However, the
Bank's Board of Directors and Iis tax advisors consider thal the possibiity of these confingent lisbiitles becoming actual
liabilities iz remote and thal, in any evenl, Ihe 1ax charge which might arise theralrom would not materially affect the
Bank's inancial statements.

As a result of the 1ax reforms anacted in Spain in 2008, including, inter alia, the modification of the standard incorme tax
rate, which was sof at 32.5% for 2007 and at 30% for 2008 and subsequent years, Spanish companies have adjusted
their deferred tax assels and Habifiies on the basis of tax ratos thal are expaected fo apply when they are recovered or
soflied, AF 2 result of tho 18 reform the expenses tay increase in € 2,811 thousand.



In addiion to the income tax recognisad in the income staiements, in 2006 and 2005 the Bank recognised EUR 2 847

ihousand and EUR 1,508 thousand, respectively, In equity.

"Ceafarred Tax Assels” amounied lo EUR 21,708 thousand in 2006 and EUR 22,188 thousand in 2005,

“Daferred Tax Liabiities® amounted to EUR 1,899 thausand in 2005

23. Residual maturity of transactions

Following ks & defadl, by maturity, of ihe balances of cerlain headings in the balance sheel at 31 December 2008:

Thovsands of Euros
2006 Wamin 1 Tiod Ite12 [ 1105 Years |ARer § Years Total
Demand Month 3 Manths Months

ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 223,373 . . . AT
Loans and atheances bo cradil insSulions 358 a7, 180 - - 3,550 41,088
Loans and advances lo cuslomes 181,735 435,863 1.005,278| 783 464 3,080 043 B 405174
Det Instnaments - 2055 654 11,220 -'I-BH‘.H-B} 1.845107 2446, 288
Ciros aclvos finecians 513 ! . ! - 517
LIABILITIES

Depenaita fram canlral benks 1,800,000 - - - - 1.800,000
EHMIJ‘I‘B fram eradil insMullona 51,085 16,543 104,568 241,879 57,983 102,298 BT, 738
Customar doposits 2,127,188 138077 41,278 54,857 80,000 1500 2420980
RS RO oy i q 470 | 1.001127] 4589252 300.079|  5.890,978
Othar linbilins with maturity 41,001 4 ! . 41,881

24, Fair v f i

Following Is » comparigon of the carrying amounts of the Bank's financial assefs and liabllbies and their respeclive Tair

wvalues al 2008 year-end.
Thousands of Euros
e Fair Valua
ASBETS
Cash and balances with central banks (Note 7) 223,373 223,373
Trading portfolin (Note 8) 30,243 20,243
Ayailablo-for-zale financial asssis (Mobe 8) 2615323 2648323
Loans and recaivables (Mote 10) 8,465,081 8,510,206
Hedging derivatives [Nole 11) 164,407 164 407
LIABILITIES
Financial liabiilies heid for trading (Mole B) 16,895 15,895
Financial llabiilles at amortised cos! (Mote 17) 10,693 681 10,820,338
Hedging derivalives (Mole 11) 334,070 338,070 |

The fair value of “Cash and Balances with Central Banks® is he same fhal the book value because il 15 shost-lerms
operations. The fair value of the “Held-lo-Malunly Invesimenis® coresponds with the guatad market price. The fair value
of “Loans and Hecelvables™ and “Financlal Liablliles at Amortised Cosl” was estimated by discouniing the expected

cash figws using the markets evlerast rates at aach yaar-and.




2 ancial guarantees and dr e by third partiea

The memorandum fems “Condingent Liabilies™ and “Contingent Commitments” in the accompanying balancs sheets
nclude the amounis thal would be payable by the Bank on behalf of third paries as a result of the commilmanis
agsumed by the Bank in the course of ils ardinary busingss if fthe paries originally obliged lo pay fal (o do o,

Thi breakdown of the balances of these itoms at 391 Decamber 2008 and 2005 |s as folows:

Thousands of Euros
2006 2008
Contingant liabilitos-
Collateral, bank guaranteas and indemnilles 696,578 678,873
88,578 §78,873
Contingent commitments-
Drawablo by third parties:
Public sector 548,567 745,379
Oither residant seciors 40,872 62,393
BED,538 807,772 |

Since & signiicant portion of these amounts will resch maturlty withoul any payment obligation malerialising for the Bank,
and therefore the aggregate balance of these commiimenis cannol be considered a8 an actual fulure reguirement far
financing or Bguidity to be provided by the Bank {o third parties,

Income from guarantes instruments is recognised under “Fee and Commission Income” in the incoma stalamant and is
calculaled by apphying the rale eslablished in the related confract fo the nominal amount of the guaranies.

26. Assels earmark g i

Af 31 Decembor 2006 and 2005, the assols owned by the Bank earmarked for own obligations amounted o EUR
2,737,839 Mmousand and EUR 3,047,166 thousand, respeclively. These amounis related mainly to assets provided as
secunly for credil faciities assigned lo the Bank by the Bank of Spain,

27. Other ¢

A1 31 Decembar 2006 and 2005 tha Bank had no oihar confingent assats or liabiliies.

P | itme

The financlal Instruments sold with a repurchase agreement are not derscognised from the belance shesds and the
proceads fram the zale are considerad financing from third pares.

Af 31 December 2006, the Bank had neither financial assefs sold with a repurchasea agreamant nor financial agsels
purchased undar a resale agreament.

28, Transactions for the account of third parlies

Thee detail of the mosl significant lems composing this heading is as follows;

WLV T Thousands of Euros
S006 2006
Assol iransfers 440,827 658,674
Derecognised in full from the balance shee 440,827 G5BETS
Conditional bills and olher sacurities received for collection 21 | 8870
L, Total 440,848 565,050




30. Interest and similar income

The breakdown of the most significant inlerest and similar income eamed by the Bank in 2008 and 2005 is as follows:

[7 Thousande of Eurgs

2008 2005
eniral banks 1.887 1470
ns and advances to credit instifutions 8,422 10,312
ns and advances to cuslomers: 308,642 248,270
Public sector 288,044 223 4TS
Resideni secior 18,182 2183z
Mon-resident secior 3,716 3,163
ebt Instruments 147 418 134,308

Eaulllﬂlinn of income as & result of hedge
g (76,004} (84.5886)
CHher Income 1,176 1.083
Tatal 390,842 310,957
exXpen

The breakdown of the balance of fhis heading in fhe accompanying income sialements is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

. = 2006 2005
nk of Spain and other ceniral banks 76,051 28,1584
from credil instilutions 28,009 33,468
Cuglomer deposils 37 083 25,431
Debt conificates (ncluding bonds) 186,861 187,714
IRectification of expenses as a resull of hadge accouming (25,924) {51,043
Cost attributable fo pansion funds (Nole 17) 732 BGE
Other charges (Note 16) 831 -
Tolal 315,789 236,753

32. Fea and commission income

The breakdown of the balance of this heading in the accompanying statements of income is as folows:

Thousands of Eurcs

oy 2006 2005
Commitment fees 26 23
Confingent Eabilities 1,589 1,306
Bank and olhar guaranieas 1.581 1,306
Collaction and paymen] senices ™ G2
[pdarkeling of non-banking financial products g T
(COther fees and commigsions 87 a7
Total 1,774 4,485




33. Fee and commission expenses

The braakdown of the balance of this heading in the accompanying income stalements is as follows:

Thousands of Euros

2006 2005
Brokaraga fees on lending and deposi Iransactions 25 39
Fees and commigsions assigned to third parties 131 56
CHher fees and commissions BD 45
Total 218 140

34, Gai [if:]

The detad, by itern, of ihe balance of this heading in the accompanying income statements, is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2006 2005
MHet gaing or losses on sale or measuramaert of assats
Financial assets haeld for trading 3,835 {5,667}
Auailable-for-sala financial assels (2,331) 10,224
Cther Pl | i
Total 1,204 A 55T
The breakdown, by financisl instrument, is as follows:
Thousands of Euros
2008 2005
Cabl instrumants 12,331) 10,224
Derivatives 3,825 (5.867)
Cther T =
Total 1,304 4,657

5. Personnal expanses

The detail of the balence of this heading in the accompanying income stalements is as follows:

Thausands of Euros
006 2005
Wages and salaries 1812 2123
Bocial sacurily cosls 328 487
Coniributions 1o pension funds (Note 17) 47 44
Qiher personnel expénsas 179 111
Total 2,368 2,TEE

The aversge number of employees in the Bank in 2008 and 2005, by professional category, was as follows:

2008 2005

Execuiives

1

Cther line personnel a5 28

Clarical siaff Z B
28 35




in 2006 the BBVA Group implemenied a long-term share-based remuneration plan for the members of the Groug's
meanagament team. A1 31 Decamber 2005, in the case of Banco de Crédilo Local, S.A., the total cost of the Plan o be
pocrusd over the plan's e (hree years) was nol significant. The cost relafing to 2008 is recegnised under "Parsonne
Expenses — Other Personnel Expenses” in the income statemenl.

36. Other administrative expenses
Tha breakdown of the balance of this heading in the incormes stalermeants is as Tollows:
Thousands of Eurcs
2008 2005
Technaology and systems 539 423
Communicalions 22 18
A dvartizing 65 62
Property, fdures and supplies 685 76
Taxes other than income lax 43 39
Clhar administrative expenses 1,603 1,850
Total 2,337 2,468

Al 31 Decermber 2008, the heading "Oiher Adminisirafive Expenses” of the foregoing detall Included EUR 38 thowsand,
redaling to fees pald to the Bank’s auditor for the audit of the 2008,

The Bank also hired the exleonal auditor for olher sarvices amounting o EUR & fhousand.

The services provided by our accountants meot the independence requiremants established in Law 44/2002, of 22
Movember, on Measures Reforming the Financial Systermn and in the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002 adopted by e
Securitiea and Exchangs Commission {SEC), and accordingly they did not include the perfarmance of any work thal is
incompatible with the audiing function,

37, Other gains and Other losses

The breakdown of the balances of ihese headings in fhe accompanying income statements is as follows:

Thousands of Euros
2008 2008

Losses
Met Izsses on tangible asset disposals - 13
Oiher losses 626 11
173 24

Gains

Dither gains = 28
- 6




38. Related-party transactions
38.1. Transactions with Subsidiaries

The balances of the main aggregales in the financial stalements arfsing from the transactions carrled out In 2006 and
2005 by the Bank with Group companies, which consisl of grdinary business and financial transaclions carried oul on an
arm's-lenglh basis, are as follows:

Thousends of Euros
2006 2005
Assets
Loans and advances lo credil instilulions 3,950 BB.100
Avallable-for-sale financial assels 11,474 6,032
Dertvatives 67,680 B2.198
83,084 166,330
Liahilities
Deposzits from credd ingilulions 473478 B28 651
Customer depoails 219,872 278,324
Cafivatives 128,354 179,438
822,204 1,284,416
Off-balance-ghest items
Conlingent liabilitins £31,630 507,767
631,639 BOT,TG6T
Income statamant
income {41,337) {35.961)
Expenses (23,572) 28,012

There are no other material effects on the financial statements of the Bank ariging from dealings with Group companies,
other than the effecls arksing from using the eguity method, and from Ihe inswance policies to cover pension ar slmilar
commitments (Mole 2-1).

Al 31 Decombar 2006 and 2005, the notional amount of the fulures transactions arranged by the Bank wilh the main
Group companies mentioned above amountad lo EUR 7,139,528 thousand and EUR 5,024,534 thousand, respectively,

In addition, a8 parl of ils normal aclivity, the Bank has entered inko agreemants and commilmants of vancus types wilh
shareholders of subsidiaries and associstes, which have no material effects on e inancial statamants.
38.2. Transactions with key personnel of the Bank

The mformation on the remuneralion payable to key members of the Bank's Board of Directors and the Group's
Management Commitios is delallad in Mola 4,

Al 31 December 2006 and 2005 no credits or lcans had been granied fo the members of the Bank's Board of Direciors,
Al 31 December 2008, the accounts payable to the Bank's directors amounted to EUR 16 thousand.

38.3. Other related-party transactions

There wers no alhar significant relaled-parly transactions,

38, Detail of the directors' investment in

Pursuant to Aricle 127 ter. of the Spanish Companies Law, infroduced by Law 28/2003 of 17 July amending Securilies
Markel Lew 24/1888 of 28 July, and the consolidalod Companies Law, in order to relnforce the ransparency of fisted
compandes, following iz a detall for 2005 of the companies engaging in an activity that Is Identical, similar or
complamontary (o the adivity thai which constiluvtes the corporate purpose of (he Bank, in which ihe members of the
Board of Directors have direc! or indirect ownership inlarests:



Dwmership lnhr_ni >
N i Company st onianits | Rasisen
Intarest
Ignacio Mareo-Gardogul SCH 26,266 DIRECT -
POPULAR B0 DIRECT -
BBVA 3ET.313 DIRECT i
Vicente de Ja Parra Gémez _ BBVA 7261 | DRECT | Execulve
Luis Escauriaza ibaftez SCH 8,350 DIRECT .
BHP 1,500 DIRECT z
Rarmdn Hesrera Otlal BEVA 52,112 DIRECT Exaculive
Pedia Forddana Garcia BEBVA 14,437 DIRECT Exocufiva
BBEVA 250,000 INCHRECT
Rila Barbera Haolla i SCH G DIRECT :
BCO, VALENCIA 416 DIRECT s
BEVA, 1,022 DIRECT -
José Ramén Gueradiaga Mendiola BEVA 10,000 DIRECT =

Alzg, In accordance with the above-menfioned Law, sef fordh below are the activiles carred on, as independent
professionals or as employses, by the varows members of the Boerd of Direcloss Ihat are idantical, similar or
cormplementary to the activity that constitutes the corporate purpose of Banco de Crédilo Locel de Espafia, 5.A.:

Activity Company Through Which the Posilicn or Function at
Director Carried On Activity Is Carried On the Company Concerned
Jogé Guerediaga Mendiola Direcior  |BBVA Bancomer ") Dirgcior
Vicanla de la Parra Gomez Direclor _ |BEVA Facloring (%) Director §
[*) BEVA Group company.
40. Expl on te

These financial stalemenis areé presented on the basis of IFRSs, as adopted by the European Union. Certaln accownting
practices applled by the Bank thal conform with IFRSs may nof conform with other generally accepiad accounling
mrinciples.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR 2006



i

Tranziation of & report originally issued in Spanish. In the event
of @ discropancy, the Spanish-fanguage version prevalls,

INTRODUCTION

Banco de Crédito Local de Espafia, 5.A. ("the Bank® or "BCL") is a private-law entity, Integrated in the
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria Group ("the BEVA Croup™. Both are subject to the rubes and
regulations applicable o banks operating in Spain.

The Bank forms part of the Business and Corporate Banking Unit {Institutions Segment) of the BEVA
Group's Whiolesale Business Division. This unit integrates the business carried on from the Parent,
Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria, S.A. ("BEVA") and that carried on by the Bank itself, both of which fall
under the responsibility of a single BEVA Group manager and are governed by a coordinated
management polloy.

Within this management structure, BCL has a network of 53 branches located in all the capital cities of
autonomous communities and large cities in Spain, sharing commaon services with BEVA such as Legal
Counseling and Risks.

However, in view of the nature of its business and the characteristics of its loans, the Bank performs
the functions of financial management and management of structural on-balance-sheet risks
Iindependently from its parent bank, This organisation enables the Bank to be more highly specialised
a5 a provider of long-term finance to local and autonomouos governments within a model of integral
relationship banking with customers, without foregoing the advantages of funding In capital markets
contributed by the gquality of its assets.

The financial information included in this directors” report is presented in accordance with the criteria
set forth in Bank of Spain Circular 472004,

LENDING TO AUTONOMOUS COMMUNITY AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES

According to the latest available data {at 30 September 2006), the overall indebtedness of Autonomaous
Community governments increased by 3.50% in the first nine months of 2006 to EUR 56.23 billion at
30 September 2005, compared with growth of 7.68% for the year-ago period. Lending 1o local
government corporations was lower at EUR 26.91 hilllon at 30 September 2006, 8.92% up on the
previous year.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES OF REGIOMAL IS R
AN LOCAL GOVERNMENTS vk % Varialion . % Varlation
0% 04
Local governmenis 2641 5 24.71 5.0
Milcnomouss community governmeals 56.23 15 54.33 7.7
TOTAL B304 5.2 79.04 68

Source: Bank of Spain Statistical Gazetre, Figures in tables 13-8 and 13-Cin billions of euros,
There are many reasons for this situation, the most noteworthy being as follows:

1. The trend in recent years In Spain’s economic situation, with a significant increase in local and
regional government savings, boosted aufonomous community and local government finances.

2. The Budget Consolidation Plans between the central government and each autonomaous communiny
government continue to follow a zero deflclt policy, although the continuing need of the
AUTDNoMOoUs communities to finance their health systems somewhat increased the use of credit
facilities.

3. The financial regulatory framework applicable to local governmeant corporations contributed ta the
containment of thelr overall indebredness.



4. The macroaconomic environment held interest rates at historically low lavels, which gave rise to a
reduction of the financial burden of the debt.

As regards competition in this market, the macroeconomic environment once again had a significant
effect. In 2006 low Interest rates continued to put pressure on margins; in addition, the increase in
lending flows from financial institutions to local governments, - which are lower risk -, continued te
be conspicuous, bringing with it a sharp increase in competition for awards of transactions for
financing investments n the sector.

Billlons of Euras
MARET SHARE H::S:ﬂmhr 2006 - \q:?,:“‘f“w 2005 .
COMMERCIAL BANKS iz 44,0 224 a46.5
SANINGS RAMES 1.8 3.4 1.6 FLN |
ICE AMD OTHERS 1.4 8 1.3 .7
OTHER 5.0 29.8 129 6.8
Taal e 1600 45.2 100.0

Source; Bank of Spain Statistical Gazette.

ACTIVITY OF BANCO DE CREDITO LOCAL DE ESPARA, S.A. IN 2006
INSTITUTIONAL BUSINESS
Loans and receivables

Total loans and credits to the sector amounted 1o EUR 1,678 million. 69.4% of this amount related to
long-term [oans.

As far as the flows of the balances of these transactions are concerned, the amounts drawn down on
the Bank's long-term loans amounted to EUR 1,028 million,

Customer flows and funds

The average balance of customer deposits was EUR 1,745 million, noteworthy being the 24% growth in
deposits from autonomous community governments.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

In 2006, 8CL"s financlal management was a basic pillar of the Bank's activities, both for its contribution
to raising financing and for its contribution to the generation of earnings through the management of
the Bank's monetary assets portfiollo,

Due 1o the nature of its business, the structure of BCL's balance sheet reguires a significant volume of
wholesale funding. The customer segment the Bank serves mainly requires loans and credits and holds
scant amounts on deposit. Accordingly, other funds must be attracted through funding in the capital
markels and for this purpose BCL has a Flxed-Income Securities Programme for EUR 4,000 million.
This programme has been individually rated by the main rating agencles, which granted it the same
ratings as those granted 1o BEVA [Aa2 from Moody's, Ad- from S&P and AA- from Fitch),



Millipns of Buras Yarlilhan
VARIATICH i SOURCES OF FUND®IG 2006 2005 Absolute %
Credit institutinns:
ERVA Graup 47259 428.32 135575 {&2.81%
instltune di Crddine Dificial 1783 17448 11 56.65] {BS.7H)
Bank of Spain 1. 80300 1.000.00 1iod.nm (5.2
OR amd EUSF 6/.33 138.3] (FO.98) {51.32)
Otheer 1908 18,01 1.08 I 0.8
Valuatlon adjusirmants 2.21 EAE (0,85} 125,58k
Uit certificates [nclisding bomdsh:
Bonds and debentures gutstanding 5 H20.93 5.899.55 (8. B2) 0.5
Valuation adjustments f4.29 16E.55 LBF. 28] {5d.02)
LRSI dnpnsivs:
BECL ingernational Flnance Lid, 14720 1R5.08 (3785 [20.47)
Other tustumer depoiits 2.4B2.75 2,002.57% 24 1B 11,76
waluatlon adjustments 76,59 9364 {1705 (a2

As regards wholesale funding in 2006, special mention should be made of the EUR 1,000 million non-
convertible bond issue In January 2006, and of the third public 1ssue of territorial bonds in October
2006, with a face value of EUR 1,000 milllon and a five-year term. This issue obtained Moody's top
crodit rating (Aaa) and is listed on the Spanish AIAF fixed-income market,

BCL is the only recurring issuer of this type of bond in Spain, and has become a benchmark in the
European covered bonds market.

In view of the demand for these securities and the levels of funding that are obtained, territorial bonds
will continue 10 be in the future one of the basic pillars of BCL's long-term stable funding policy.

For short-term financing, the Bank continued to participate in the European Central Bank's periodic
monetary policy transactions and actively managed the portfolio of assets eligible to be used as
sacurity for these rransactions. At 31 December 2006, the total amount of assets eligible to be used as
sECUrity was approximately EUR 3,156 milllon.

RISK MANAGEMENT

BCL's risk management is considered an intrinsic part of its banking business and a source of its
compelithve advantage.,

The risk function has been designed as a supplier of management models that enable the Bank o
reach the necessary balance between the assumption of risk and the expected returm on the business,
and is aimed at maximising shareholder return ard value creation.

The Bank, as a member of the BEVA Group, participates In the Group's global risk management System
which Is based on three components: a corporate risk management structure; a set of tools, circuits
and proceduras that make up the different risk management systems; and an internal control system,
Following is a summary of each one of them:

Corporate risk management structure.

The Bank is integrated in the same structure as the BBVA Group, which is summarised as follows:



= The Board of Directors of BBVA Is the most senior body that determines the Bank's risk policy and
approves any non-delegated transactions,

» The Lending Committee, which repons 1o the Board of Directors of BEVA, is a specialised body
whose functions include, inter alia: evaluation of the general risk policies and establishment of
limits by type of risk, management resources, procedures and systems, structures and processes;
approval of individual or group risks that may affect the Bank's solvency, in keeping with the
established delegation system.

= The Technical Transactions Committee analyses and approves, where appropriate, the financial
transactions and programmes that are within its level of authorisation, and refers any transactions
exceeding the scope of its delegated powers to the Landing Committee.

* The Asset-Liability Committee (ALCQ) s the body responsible fer actively managing the Bank's
structural liquidity and interest rate risks, and its core capital,

Tools and clrecults,

The Bank has provided itself with a customer rating teol, Territorial Institutions Ratings. This tool,
developed on the basis of well-founded criteria, knowledge, experience and statistics, Is the
cornerstone of the risk acceptance process, It is applied to all customers and transactions in the
segment from the branches that make up the Bank's network.

In addition, the risk acceptance areas of the regional offices have been strengthened through the
provision of suitable means to carry out risk acceptance tasks. Delegation of powers is carried out on
the basis of the isorisk curve, I.. on the basis of the rating assigned 1o the customer.

As regards the structural liquidity and interest rates risks, limits have been set to potential losses on
the basis of the various risks incurred; determination of possible impacts of the structural risks on the
income statement and setting of limits and alerts that ensure the Bank's lguidity.

Asset and Hability management

As a general principle BCL manages its assets and liabilities autonomously and focuses its efforts on
the attainment of various targets: stable financing of the balance sheet by expanding and diversifying
Its funding sources, minimising calls for financing from the Parent bank, maintaining its credit ratings
and minimising the cost of financing.

The Bank's asset and liability management s carried out within the framework of the criteria and
exposure limits set for interest rate and Nguidity risk exposure by the Bank's Board of Directors, The
Asset-Liability Committee {ALCO) is responsible for the management of the Bank's assets and
liaktlithes,

The Committee meets every month o review the Bank’s exposure to these risks and makes the
decisions considered appropriate at any given time based on expected trends in market variablas,

Liguidity risk

The Bank aims to orderly replace its existing liabilities vpon maturity, while minimising variations in
wholesale funding. Accordingly, In 2006 the Bank took several actions aimed at extending and
diversifying its funding sources.

Every month the ALCO reviews liquidity gaps and compliance with the established short-term limits
and ensures that medium- and long-term funding needs in the wholesale markets are compatible with
the Bank's capacity to raise funding in the capital markets. Also, the Bank is included in the BBVA
Group's liguidity risk measurement systems and follows the guidelines laid down by the Group in this
area.

The range of guarantees accepied in Bank of Spain monetary policy transactions was extended and
access to privileged funding sources with new guarantee structures was maximised (FIB, Councll of
Evrope ...}



-6~

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk limits are established in terms of the impact that an adverse variation in Interest rates
might have on the economic value of the Bank and of the effect that such variation would have on the
Bank's net interest Income In the following twebve months.

Both limits are set so that an unexpected adverse variation in interest rates would only have a limited
material impact on the profit and market value of equity of the Bank.

Forelgn currency risk

Given the purely domestic nature of its business, it s Bank policy not to hold open foreign currency
Fisk positions.

Credit risk in market activity

Credit risk arising on transactions with other financial institutions is measured differently depending
on whether on- or off-balance-sheet transactions are imdolved. BCL is included in the BEVA Group's
systems for measuring risks arising from hoth types of transaction, whereby the overall risk 1o each
counterparty, the distribution by Group unit and the risk assumed on each transaction are determined
in a centrallsed way.

BALANCE SHEET

The Bank's balance sheets at 31 0ecember 2006 and 2005, are as follows {In millions of euros)y:



Variation
BALAMCE SHEET 2006 2005 Absolute "

Cash and balances with central
banks 223.373 334.623 =111.250 ~33.25
Financial assets held for trading 30,243 27574 2.669 .68
Available-for-sale financial assets 2.619.323  2.847.155 -227.832 -8.00
Loans and receivables B, A65.091 B, 778.624 =313.533 -3.57

Loans and advances to credit

institutions 41,202 120 848 =88 745 -G8 29

Loans and advances o -

CLSTOMErS 8423357  B.648.66% S L 281

Other Fnancial assars 0.532 o.tar 525 a
Hedaging derlvatives 164.407 221,320 -56.913 =25.72
Non-current assats held for sale
Investmenis 1.913 2713 =0. 780 =28.75
Insurance contracts linked to
pensions 6,343 B.931 -0.588 -8.48
Tanglble assets 25.687 26.395 -0 708 -2.68
Tax assels 21.708 22,229 =521 -2.34
Prepayment and accrued income 0.306 G170 0.136 E0.00
Other assers 4.040 0.419 e R SR
Total assets = liabllities 11,563.354 12,26B.153 -704.799 -5.74
Financial liabilities held for trading 15.895 21.180 ~5.285 =24, 0%
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 10,893,681 11.477.677 =583.995 =5.09
Hedging derivatives 33B.070 327777 -89.707 -20.97
Provisions 29.950 31.0012 =1.062 -3.421
Tax liabilities 3.841 8.313 -4, 472 -53.80
Accrued expenses and deferred
income 1.362 1.987 =0.625 -31.45
Other liabilities D.223 i 0243 4]
Valuation adjustments (6.877) 3.527 -1 404 -294 0GR
Capital and reserves 246,287 246,287 o (1]
Profit 40,992 50.393 =5.471 ~18. 749

The Bank's Total Assets at 31 December 2006 amounted to EUR 11,563 million, a decrease of ELUR 705
million with respect to 2005, dus mainly to the fall in interbank market activity. However, business
volume, i.e. the sum of loans and total customer funds managed amounted 1o EUR 16,835 milllon,
down §.8% on the EUR 17,031 million at 31 December 2005.

The main asset item, "Loans and Advances to Customers®, amounted to EUR 8,423 million, which
represents an increase of EUR 225 million on the 2005 figure.

As regards liabllities, on-balance-sheet funds relating to the business with customers amounted to
EUR 2,287 million, showing a year-on-year increase of 11.8%

Funds from wholesale funding obtained on capital markets, i.e. the sum of non-resident sector
deposits and debt certificates (including bonds), amounted to EUR 6,185 million, up 2.4% on the

pravious vear's figure.



[Amounts in millions of eurcs)

DEC 06 DEC 05 # variation
FINARCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST 10,694 11,477 =5.0%
Central banks and credit Institutions 2,380 3,060 =2 2. 2%
Resident sector deposits 2,287 2,045 11.86%
Mon-resident sector deposits 220 276 =20.3%
Debt certificates {including bonds) 5,065 6,061 -1.6%
Other financial labilities 42 35 20.0%
Memorandum [bems:
ACTivity with customers 2,287 2,045 11.8%
Wholesale funding 6,185 6,337 -2.4%
CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS
Milllons of Euros Varlation
CAPITALISATION 2006 2005 Absolube .3
K OF SPAIM R 1
Risk=weighted assets £.337.61 245353 -115.92 | -4.73
Eligible capital 242.18 246.29 -4.11| =1.67
Cushlan 148.67 148.15 0.52 | -0.36
BANK OF SPAIN RATIO 10.23 10,02 0.21 2.09
TIER | 10.23 10.02 0,21 2.09
BIS RATIO 10.35 10.2 0.15 1.45

At 31 December 2006, the Bank's capital ratio calculated by Bank for International Settlements (BIS)
rules was 10.35% compared with 10,208 at 2005 yvear-end. Tier | capital was 10,23% compared with

the 10.02% of the previous year,

The Bank's eligible capital at 310December 2006, was EUR 242.18 million. This amount represents a
cushion of EUR 148.67 million with respect to minimum capital requirements.

At 31 December 2006, the Bank had no treasury shares or shares of Its Parent, Banco Blibao Vizcaya

Argentaria, 5.4A., and had not performed any treasury share transactions in the year,




EARMNINGS
INCOME STATEMEMT Millions af Euros Variation
2006 2005 Absolute %
INTEREST AND SIMILAR INCOME 190.842 110,957 79.HES 75.69
INTEREST EXPEMSE AMD SIMILAR (315.799) (235.753) (80.0485) 33.a5
CHARGES
MET INTEREST INCOME 75.043 75.204 (0.181) (.21}
FEE AMD COMMISSION INCOME 1.774 1.495 0.279 18.66
FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE (0.2186) {01400 (D.076} 54.29
GAINSLOSSES ON FINANCIAL 1.304 4.557 (3.253)  (71.38)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
EXCHAMNGE DIFFERENCES 0.005 0170 (0.165}  (97.06)
GROSS INCOME 77.910 81.286 {3.3786) (4.15)
OTHER CPERATING INCOME 1.343 1.327 00186 1,21
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPEMSES (4.703 [5.233) 0.530 {10.13)
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION (0.721) [0.758) 0.037 {4.88)
AND WRITE-DOMWN OF ASSETS
OTHER OPERATING EXPEMSES (0.047 [0.034) {0.013) 38.24
WET OPERATING IMCOME 73.782 TE.588 [2.806) (3.66)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (3.417) 2.198 (5.615) ([255.46)
= Loans and receivables 2.363 2.51% (.15 (5.97)
- Investments (5. 780} (0. 3500 (5.4300 0
= Other 0.0 G035 (0.035) (100000
EXTRAGEDINARY PROFIT (net) {0.B2B6) a.002 (0.628) 0
PROVISIONS (netd {2.359) (1.261) (1.098) 87.07
PROFIT REFORE TAX a7 380 77.527 (10,147 {13.09)
INCOME TAX (26.458) (27 134) 0.676  (2.49)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 40.922 50.393 (9.471) (18.79)

in 2006 net interest income amounted to EUR 75.403 million, which represents a decrease of EUR
0. 161 million on the year-ago figure.

Profit before tax amounted to EUR 67.380 millien, which represents a decrease of 13.09% as compared
with 2004, Net of the estimated corporation tax, profit for the year amounted to EUR 40922 milliocn,
18, 79% down an 2005,

With these results, the return on awerage total assets (ROA) was 0.33% and the return on awveérage
equity (ROE) was 16.6%.

DRGANISATION AND RESOURCES

Human resources

Human resourcées management in 2006 was based on a policy of continuity and stendardisation
established at the BBVA Group, as a bank belonging thereto, As a result, progréss was made in the
management model which is increasingly focused on the Institutional Banking business unit.

A strategic plan was presented in July 2006 at Bank level, Entitled “the Spanish Networks Project”, Its
aim was o take a further step ahead in BEC's value chain.

It is an integrated project targeting transformation and growth that affecred all the Bank's structures,
namely its branches, intermediate structures and central services. The project streamlines and
simplifies the current organisational structure, while maintalning segment spacialisation.
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This project encompassed BCL, which had a workfarce of 17 employees at 2006 year-end.

Structures and organisation

In erder to ensure the uniformity of administrative support procedures, under the Wholesale Banking
Project the administration of BCL's loan transactions was included in the new Madrid Cperating Centre,
thereby supporting operational risk control through the Incorporation of task- or function-based
processes,

As a rasull of the inclusion of the derivatives and options trading operations in the ABACO application,
the integration of all the Treasury Department's back-office operatlons In the BBVA Group's
Information systems was substantially completed, including automation of the existing manual
I[nterfaces and automatic adaptation of the accounting information generated to the new standards in
orca,

Similarly, in keeping with the Croup’s new organisation, management of BCL's Operational Risk tools
was integrated in the Business and Corporate Banking Division.

OQUTLODK

The Bank will focus its strategy for the coming years on Increasing specialisation in its segments and
diversifying the products and services to be sold to its traditional customer segment and related
groups through BEVA and the single network, This will generate new revenue flows supplementing
those derived from lending to local and regional government, through which the Bank expects to
abtain growth exceeding that from the pure lending business, which is currently subject to budget
controd measures affecting the public sector.

EMNVIROMMENTAL IMPACT

At 31 December 2006, the Bank's financial statements did not present any item that should be
included in the emvironmental information report reguired by Ministry of Economy and Finance Order
of 8 October 2001,

REPOART ON THE ACTIVITY OF THE CUSTOMER CARE SERVICE AMD CUSTOMER OMBUDSMAN
DEPARTMENT

Pursuant to Ministry of Economy and Finance Order ECOJ/734/2004, of 11 March 2004, on customer
care and customer ombudsman departments and services at financial institutions and as a member of
the Banco Bilbap Vizcayva Argentaria Group, the Bank formalised its adhesion to the Rueles on
Consumer Ombudsman and the Customer Care Service of BEBVA, and appointed as Customer
Ombudsman the same person as that designated by BEVA at any given time.

The 2006 Activity Report evidences the absence of complaints or claims identified In this Customer
Care Service, and this fact is valued positively as it is construed that customers had no need to make
use of this service.



